TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
WEDNESDAY, 18TH JUNE, 2012 AT 10.00 AM
IN COUNTY HALL, COUNTY BUILDINGS, ST CATHERINE STREET, CUPAR

AGENDA OF BUSINESS

1 MEMBERSHIP OF BOARD - page 5
{Note of membership of the reconstituted Board enclosed)
2 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN AND VICE-CHAIRMAN

In terms of paragraph 10 of Schedule 1 to the Tay Road Bridge Order 1991, the Board is required to
appoint a Chairman and Vice Chairman at this meeting.

3 APPOINTMENT OF CLERK, TREASURER AND ENGINEER

In terms of Section 5 of the Tay Road Bridge Order 1891, the Board is required to appoint a Cierk, a
Treasurer and an Engineer. lt is suggested that Dundee City Council continue to act as lead authority
to the Board and, consequently, the following Officers of the City Council continue to serve in the posts
indicated:

Clerk - Head of Democratic and Legal Services
Treasurer - Director of Corporate Services
Engineer - City Engineer

4 APPOINTMENT OF SUB COMMITTEES

)] Appointment of Appeals Committea

The Board is asked to re-establish an Appeals Committee, with powers to deal with staff grievance and
disciplinary matters, Membership of the last Appeals Committee comprised the Chairman, Vice-
Chairman and one other member of the Board, as available.

(i} Appoiniment of Miscellaneous Sub Committes

The Board is asked to re-establish a Miscellaneous Sub-Committee, with powers to deal with
miscellaneous matters such as regradings and other types of disciplinary matters which are outside the
Jurisdiction of the Bridge Manager. Membership of the last Miscellaneous Sub Committee comprised
one member from Dundee City Coungil, one from Fife Council and one other member as available,
these not to include members of the Appeal Sub Committee in the interests of natural justice.

5 MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING - page 7

Minute of meeting of the Board of 5th March, 2012.

Copy enclosed.

6 OPERATIONAL CLOSURES - page 9

Report No TRB8-2011 by the Engineer enclosed.

7 ENGINEERING WORKS - page 13

(Report No TRB14-2012 by the Engineer enclosed).

8 2012-2013 INSURANCE PROGRAMME - page 17

(Report No TRB10-2012 by the Treasurer enclosed).



9 UNAUDITED STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2012 --
page 21

(Report No TRB13-2012 by the Treasurer enclosed).

10 EXTERNAL AUDIT - ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 2011-2012 - page 75

(Report No TRB11-2012 by the Treasurer enclosed).

11 INTERNAL AUDITOR'S REPORT - page 93

(Copies enclosed).

12 RESPONSE TO INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT - page 183

(Report No TRB9-2012 enclosed by the Bridge Manager).

13 FIFE CORE PATH - page 187

(Report No TRB12-2012 enclosed).

14 MANAGEMENT RULES

Under Section 80(1) of the Tay Road bridge Confirmation Act 1891 the Joint Board may make rules to
be known as the "management rules” to regulate (a) the use of; and (b) the conduct of persons while
on or in the bridge or any land or premises which is owned, occupied or managed by the Joint Board or
is otherwise under their control and to which the public have access.

These rules have been updated and copies of the updated version will be circulated at the meeting.

It is proposed that the Board be asked to approve the rules for the purposes of giving notice of their
intention fo make them. Statute requires at least one month's public notice of the intention to make
Management Rules and to afford opportunity for objections. Before making Management Rules the
Board is required to take into consideration any objectiens timeously received by them and give any
objector an opportunity to be heard by them.

If the Board approves the Rules, for the purposes stated above, a further report will be brought back to
the next meeting of the Board to consider the outcomes of the response to the Notice of intention to
make the Rules.

15 DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS

Monday, 10th September, 2012 at 10.00 am in Dundee
Monday, 10th December, 2012 at 11.00 am in Dundee.



At a MEETING of the TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD held at Dundee on 5ih March, 2012.
Present:-

Councillors Andrew ARBUCKLE, David BOWES Ken LYNN, David McDIARMID, Margaret TAYLOR
and Jim YOUNG.

Apologies were intimated from Councillors John WHYTE, Will DAWSON, Tom FERGUSON and
Ross VETRAINO.

Councillor Andrew ARBUCKLE, Chairman, in the Chair.

i MINUTE OF MEETING OF TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD OF
12TH DECEMBER, 2011

The minute of the above mentioned meeting was submitied and approved.

i ENGINEERING WORKS

There was submitted Report No TRB7-2012 by the Engineer, advising the Joint Board of the current
situation regarding Engineering Works on the Bridge. The Joint Board noted the position on current
progress on various projects.

i OPERATIONAL RESTRICTION AND CLOSURES

There was submitted Report No TRB4-2012 by the Bridge Manager, advising the Joint Board of the
number and nature of operational restrictions and closures applied between 1st November and
31st January, 2012

The Joint Board noted the report.

v REVENUE MONITORING - 10 MONTHS TO 31ST JANUARY, 2012

There was submitted Report No TRB1-2012 by the Treasurer, advising the Joint Board of the current
monitoring position of its 2011/2012 Revenue Budget.

The Joint Board noted the contents of the Report.
Vv CAPITAL MONITORING - SEVEN MONTHS TO 31ST JANUARY, 2012

There was submitted Report No TRB2-2012 by the Treasurer, advising the Joint Board of the current
monitoring position of its 2011/2012 Revenue Budget.

The Joint Board notfed the contents of the Report.
Vi INTERNAL AUDIT - ANNUAIL AUDIT PLAN 2011/2012

There was submitted Report No TRB3-2012 detailing the Internal Audit Annual Audit Plan prepared by
Henderson Loggie.

The Joint Board noted the contents of the Internal Audit Annual Plan for 2011/20413 based on the
detailed Internal Audit Needs Assessment and Strategic Plan 2010 to 2013.

Vil HEALTH & SAFETY MONITORING 2012

There was submitted Report No TRBS-2012 by the Bridge Manager advising the Joint Board of
performance relating to Health & Safety in 2011.

The Jeint Board noted the outcomes of the report and approved the findings of the review.

t\documentsitayrdbjb\mins\2012\050312.doc (mc)



vili QUEEN'S DIAMOND JUBILEE - ADDITIONAL DAY ANNUAL LEAVE

There was submitted Report No TRB6-2012 by the Bridge Manager seeking the Joint Board's
approvai of an additional day's annual leave in recognition of H.M. the Queen's Diamond Jubilee on
Tuesday, 5th June, 2012,

The Board approved the granting of one additional days’ annual leave as outlined in the report.
IX FUTURE MANAGENMENT AND MAINTENANCE OF TAY ROAD BRIDGE

It was reported that following the recent announcement in late 2011, that FETA would be dissolved
with the transfer of the assets required for the safe operation of the Bridge to Scoitish Ministers
together with the future management and maintenance of the Forth Replacement Crossing and the
Forth Road Bridge being transferred to and contracted out (subject to TUPE) by Transport Scotiand,
the Chairman had written to Transport Scotland expressing concerns raised by the Tay Road Bridge
workforce in relation to the future management and contro! of the Tay Road Bridge.

The Joint Board noted the response dated 16th January, 2012 from Transport Scotland advising that
there were currently no plans to change the management, ownership or maintenance of the Tay Road
Bridge.

X DATE OF NEXT MEETING

Monday, 18th June, 2012 at 10.00 a.m. in the Training Room, County Buildings, Cupar, Fife.

Andrew J ARBUCKLE, Chairman.



REPORT TO:
REPORT ON:
REPORT BY:

REPORT NO:

TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD —~ 18 JUNE 2012
REPORT ON OPERATIONAL RESTRICTIONS AND CLOSURES
THE BRIDGE MANAGER

TRB08- 2012

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To appraise the Joint Board of the number and nature of operational restrictions and closures
applied between 1 February and 30 April 2012.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

The Board are asked to note the contents of this Report as at 30 April 2012,

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications as a result of this report.

4 POLICY IMPLICATIONS

4,1 None.

5. COMMENTARY ON OPERATIONAL RESTRICTIONS AND CLOSURES

5.1 Restrictions are applied to the fraffic on the bridge for a number of reasons including recovering
debris, breakdowns, high winds and other operational requirements.

A summary of the resftrictions applied between February and April 2012 are given below:-

)

Single carriageway closures

Reason Total No of Average
Duration | Occasions | Duration
(Minutes) (Minutes)
Operational 735 263 3
Breakdown 77 10 8
Misc. 45 23 2
Incidents




i) Traffic Restrictions

Reason Single Total No of Average
Carriageway | Duration | Occasions | Duration
/Both (Minutes) (Minutes)

High Winds

No Double Both 7052 13 542

Deck

Buses

Allowed

Cars Only Both 30 1 30

Full Both 0 0 0

Closure

Roadworks

TRBJB Single 0 0 0

External Single 1175 4 294

Contractor

iii) Closures on both carriageways

Reason Full Total No of Average

Closure | Duration | Occasions | Duration
(Minutes) (Minutes)

Operational Yes 0 0 0

{Night

Closures)

Police Yes 650 13 50

incidents

ifi) Availability of Bridge

Based on the above figures the various levels of availability of the bridge fo users is as

follows:~

Full availability (No restrictions) 92.4%
Partial Availability (Some restrictions} 7.1%
No Availability (Full Closure) 0.5%
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Figure 1 — Comparison of Availability of Bridge to Users

As can be seen from Figure 1 there was a reduction in the level of partial availability over the period.
This was due to the lack of traffic management associated with the Dundee City Waterfront works.
The majority of these restrictions were off peak which resulted in minimal disruption or delays to

bridge users.

The level of total closures for the period was less than 1%

6 CONSULTATIONS

6.1 The Treasurer, Clerk and Engineer to the Board have been consulted in the preparation of this
report.

7 BACKGROUND PAPERS

71 None

IAIN MACKINNON
BRIDGE MANAGER
24 May 2012
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REPORT TO: TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD — 18 JUNE 2012

REPORT ON: ENGINEERING WORKS
REPORT BY: ENGINEER TO THE BOARD
REPORT NO: TRB 14-2012

1.1

2.1

3.1

4.1

5.1

6.1

71

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To advise the Joint Board on the current situation regarding Engineering works on
the bridge.

RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that the Joint Board note the position on current progress.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications arising from this report.
SUSTAINABILITY POLICY IMPLICATIONS

There are no Sustainability Policy implications of relevance to this report.
EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES IMPLICATIONS

There are no equal opportunities implications of relevance to this report.
IMPLICATIONS TO BRIDGE USERS

There are no major implications for bridge users arising from this repert.

BACKGROUND

Pier Collision Protection Works

Reference is made to Article | of the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board meeting of 1
August 2011 where the Joint Board agreed the terms of the Confractor's
Statement including the developed tender of £15,114,359.28 from VolkerStevin
Ltd and noted an estimated overall expenditure requirement of £19.1 million for
the pier collision protection works project.

Reference is also made to Article || of the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board meeting of
12 September 2011 where the Joint Board was advised of progress with this
project and VolkerStevin Lid gave a presentation to the Board on the proposed
methodology, plant and equipment to be used in the construction of these
specialist marine works.
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Report No, TRB-14-2012

As previously advised, the contract period is for 18 months from August 2011 to
February 2013, however the contractor has programmed the works to complete by
December 2012.

VolkerStevin set up offices and a working compound in Dundee Port in early
January 2012 and are currently completing substantial reinforced concrete works
in the yard to form the large precast fendering units.

Piling works started on site on 5 April 2012 and were completed ahead of
programmed time on 13 May 2012.

Scour protection works to the river bed around the piles started on 1 June 2012
and are progressing well.

Sub-contracts for the specialist 'lift and shift' operations and for the specialist
floating plant for the installation of the precast concrete fendering units have now
been secured with a view to starting installation on the river in early July 2012.
Once installed, the precast units will be tied together with steel reinforcement and
approximately 7000 tonnes of concrete placed.

Works are currently on programme for completion by December 2012,

The following provides a summary of progress with the key elements of work to 31
May 2012:

Manufacture of precast concrete fendering units - 80%
Piling - 100%
Scour protection - 10%
Installation of precast concrete fendering units - 0%
Steel reinforcement to precast concrete fendering units - 0%
Concrete infill to precast fendering units - 0%
Ancillary works - 0%

As previously advised, VolkerStevin have signed up to a partnership with the Tay
Road Bridge Joint Board, Dundee City Council, Fife Council, Angus Council and
the Discover Opportunities Employability Partnership. This secures community
benefit in the form of employment and training opportunities for local people.

Currently, VolkerStevin have recruited 3 local office staff and 5 local labourers and
have 2 vacancies registered with Discover Opportunities. 5 vacancies have been
filled through Discover Opportunities

VolkerStevin have recruited 4 local people to fill management/engineering roles
for the project including a local civil engineering graduate and are providing
appropriate training.

The precast concrete works have been sub-contracted to a local company
currently employing 27 local operatives. Scaffolding is also being provided locally
by 3 local operatives.

Scour protection mattresses are being manufactured by SPS in Dundee Port
whilst Briggs Marine, Fife are providing marine access and carrying vessels.

Concrete is being supplied locally along with miscellaneous other materials and
plant from local merchants and tool hire companies.



Keport No. | KB-14-2012

In total, 200 jobs have been created on the project and to date 138 of these jobs
have been filled by local [abour (69%).

The site is registered with the Considerate Constructors Scheme, showing
VolkerStevin's commitment to operating with consideration for the environment
and the local community it is working within.

The costs on the contract are controlled and monitored on a regular basis. The
following summarises the current financial position with the contract:

Actual Projected Abproved
Spend to Spend to end gﬁd ot
31/05M12 of Contract g
Contractor Professional £188,456 £188,456* £100,000
Services
Site Investigation £753,037 £753,037 £900,000
Contract Works £6,621,047 | £15,114,359 £15,114,359
Share allowance £0 £755,718 £755,718
Contingencies £0 £1,020,923 £1,020,923
Engineer to the Board fees £ 137,500 £164,000 £164,000
Professional Consultants Fees- | £ 439,151 £460,000* £380,000
Design
Category 3 Design Check £66,500 £75,000 £75,000
Professional Consultants Fees - £346,767 £440,000 £490,000
Contract
Other Allowances £95,000 £100,000 £100,000
Total £8,647,458 £19,071,493 £19,100,000

* Note that the contractor professional services fees and the professional
consultants design fees are over the original budget for that heading, however this
was to cover a number of value engineering exercises which has resulted in

shared savings of over £500,000.

15
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Report No. TRB-14-2012

7.2

8.1

9.1

Dundee Waterfront - Removal and Reconstruction of Bridge Ramps

Dundee City Council awarded the contract for this stage of the works to Sir Robert
MacAlpine Ltd at a cost of £8.2 million. This stage involves the phased removal
and replacement of the remainder of the approach ramps to the Tay Road Bridge
including the construction of temporary diversion routes necessary for the removal
of the ramps. The works also include the construction of elements of roads,
drainage and services within the Waterfront Development. Works associated with
the Dundee Waterfront started on site on 30 August 2011

The works to the remainder of the bridge ramps are to be carried out in a number
of phases over a two year period with completion by December 2013. Works
started in January 2012 on the widening of the southbound on ramp at Customs
House to accommodate two wide lanes of traffic. These works have now been
completed and were opened in late April 2012, During the waterfront works, this
widened ramp is now the only route onto the southbound carriageway of the Tay
Road Bridge for traffic.

The traffic management arrangements for access to and egress from the bridge
currently in place are those generally in place until the new ramps open in
December 2013. These new long term temporary arrangements are working well.

The new traffic arrangements have allowed the on ramp at Tayside House to
close and this enabled demolition of the remaining bridge ramps to start in early
June 2012. Demolition works are progressing well and the current phase is due to
complete by the end of July 2012. Thereafter, construction of the new bridge
ramps will commence with the piled foundations. The new on ramps will be of
reinforced earth construction with a granite clad facing to match the new
westbound off ramp. [t is proposed to utilise recycled crushed demolition material
from the original bridge ramps and from Tayside House in the new on ramps.

Further regular reports will be brought to the Board detailing progress with this
important project.

The Bridge Manager will continue to provide the Board with a monthly update on
progress.

CONSULTATIONS

The Clerk, Treasurer and Bridge Manager have been consulted in the preparation
of this report.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

None.

Fergus Wilson
Engineer to the Board

FW/EH

Dundee City Council
Dundee House

Dundee

9 June 2012



REPORT TO: TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD - 18 JUNE 2012

REPORT ON: 2012/2013 INSURANCE PROGRAMME

REPORT BY: TREASURER

REPORT NO: TRB 10-2012

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

PURPOSE OF REPORT

This report provides an overview of the insurance arrangements for the financial year
2012/2013.

RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended that the Board notes the details contained within this report.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The financial implications of the 2012/2013 insurance programme are that the covers have
been negotiated within the provision contained in the approved 2012/2013 Revenue
Budget, with the exception of the increase in the premium for the Engineering Combined
policy which is still the subject of negotiations.

MAIN TEXT

All policies are negotiated by Dundee City Council's Risk and Business Continuity Manager
under the Service Level Agreement with the Corporate Services (Finance)} Department. All
policies are arranged through the insurance brokers Marsh with the exception of Directors
& Officers and Death in Service policies which are arranged directly with the insurers.

Property / Material Damage / Business Interruption:
Covers property damage to the bridge assets, buildings and contents, and increased cost
of working following insured damage. The first loss limit for damage to the bridge is £13m.

Combined Liability Policies:
These policies cover the Board's legal liabilities to its employees and to members of the
public.

Directors & Officers:
This policy is a traditional liability policy covering the individual and collective legal liabilities
of Board Members and officers.

Fidelity Guarantee:
This policy relates to fraud / misappropriation of materials by Board employees.

Personal Accident;

Covers personal accident and travel exposures. Variable injury benefits cover lump sum
payments for death, permanent disablement, and permanent disfigurement. The travel
insurance is applicable for any travel undertaken primarily for business purposes and
includes cover for medical expenses, personal belongings, business equipment, cash,
travel documents, travel disruption, and personal liability.

Hired in Plant:
This policy responds to loss of or damage fo small plant hired in by the Board.

TRB10-2012 - Insurance - 180812
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4.7 Engineering Combined:
The principal cover afforded by this policy relates to inspection of ganiries, associated
infrastructure and other owned plant in compliance with statutory requirements.
The premiums have increased from £5,386 to £15,166. This is due to the fact that prior to
recent modifications to the runway beam and the gantries the insurers were satisfied that
an annual inspection was sufficient. However following the modification work the insurers
consider it necessary to undertake six monthly inspections in accordance with Lifting
Operations and Lifting Equipment Regulations (LOLER) until such time that they are
confident that the inspection frequency can revert to being carried out annually. This will
result in increased visits to site from insurance inspectors and subsequent increase
premiums. Dundee City Council's Risk and Business Continuity Manager is in negotiations
to try to reduce this premium to take cognisance of reduced inspection burdens when the
gantries were out of use.

4.8 Motor Fleet:
Covers any employee of the Board for vehicles that are the property of the Bridge Board
and any that are on hire, loaned or leased to the Board. An excess of £100 is applicable
on each claim.

4.9 Marine:
Provides cover for damage to Board owned vessels and any liabilities resulting from their
use.

4,10 Death in Service:
Provides additional life cover to employees over and above that provided by the Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). At present this is a contractual benefit for all
current employees but was closed o new employees after 31 December 2011 (see Report
TRB26-2011 at Board Meeting on 12 December 2011).

5 SUSTAINABILITY POLICY IMPLICATIONS
None.

6 EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES IMPLICATIONS
None.

7 BACKGROUND
There are no significant insurance renewal issues to report on for the Board. All covers
have been renewed with existing insurers.

MARJORY M STEWART

TREASURER 8 JUNE 2012

TRB19-2012 - {nsurance - 180612



TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

PREMIUM SUMMARY 201

CLASS 2009 2010 2011 2012
£ £ £ £

Property 89,170 | 65723 | 65811 65092
Combined Liability 18,480 17,591 17,864 18,804
Excess Public Liability 3,969 3,969 4,007 4,007
Directors & Officers 1,587 1,620 1,357 1,357
Fidelity 827 800 848 869
Personal Accident 983 983 993 943
Hired in Plant 788 812 819 819
Engineering Combined 6,264 6,328 5,386 15,166
Motor Fleet 3,367 3,605 3,896 3,628
Marine 7,381 7,500 7,500 7,078
Death in Service 4 335 4,335 4,335 4,346
Business Continuity Planning 3,000 - - -
TOTAL 120,161 | 113,266 | 112,816 | 123.009

Premiums include HM Government's Insurance Premium Tax (6% from 2011, previously 5%).

TRB10-2012 - Insurance - 180612
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REPORT TO: TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD - 18 JUNE 2012

REPORT ON: UNAUDITED STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2012

REPORT BY: TREASURER

REPORT NO: TRB 13-2012

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

To provide some additional commentary on the unaudited Statement of Accounts for
the year ended 31 March 2012 which is being submitted to the Tay Road Bridge Joint
Board along with this report.

RECOMMENDATIONS
it is recommended that the Board:
i notes the contents of this covering report;

ii notes the unaudited Statement of Accounts which has been submitted along
with report;

iii instructs the Treasurer to submit this Statement of Accounts to the Controller of
Audit, Accounts Commission for Scotland:

iv notes that the key assumptions underpinning the independent actuaries
calculation of the Board's IAS 19 liability have been reviewed and accepted by
Dundee City Council as administering authority for the Pension Fund.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The Board's 2011/2012 Movement in Reserves Statement shows that there was a
break-even position during the year. This gives a total General Reserve Balance of
£1,160,591 as at 31 March 2012.

BACKGROUND

The relevant statutory provisions regarding the preparation of the Board's Accounts are
contained in the Local Authority Accounts {Scotland) Regulations 1985, as amended by
the Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Amendment Regulations 1997. Section 4 of
these regulations requires that "... all the accounts of the local authority are made up
and balanced as soon as practicable after the year end of each financial year and that
sufficient copies of an abstract of the said accounts for each financial year are prepared
... and submitted to the authority and the Controller of Audit not later than 30 June in the
next financial year...".

As in previous years the Statement of Accounts have been prepared in accordance with
the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting (the Code). There are no significant
changes included within the 2011/12 Code, that impact upon the Board's Accounts.

The Statement of Accounts already includes a detailed commentary on the figures
contained therein and it is not intended to repeat this in this covering report. It is
however, worth reiterating a few of the more salient points.

During the financial year the Board received quarterly revenue monitoring reports to
keep the members fully appraised as to actual spend-to-date and the projected revenue

TRB13-2012 - Unaud Aecs-180612
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4.5

4.6

outturn position. The Board's 2011/2012 Movement in Reserves Statement shows that
there was a balanced budget during the year. The main variances were as follows:

£000
Staff Costs underspend (38)
Property Costs underspend (19)
Supplies & Services underspend (26)
Third Party Payments underspend (10)
Other Operating Income shortfall 5
increased Financing and Investment income (13)
Non-Specific Grant Income shortfall 110

Other minor budget heads overspend (9)
TOTAL :

Further details of the other areas of under and overspend together with reasons for
these variances are included on pages 6 and 7 of the Statement of Accounts. The
overall effect of the above resulted in a closing General Reserve Balance of £1,160,591
as at 31 March 2012.

On 13 December 2010, the Board approved a 2011/2012 Capital Expenditure
Programme for various works on the bridge and other miscellaneous capital purchases.
The programme totalled expenditure of £11,125,000 in 2011/2012, which would be
funded by capital grant from the Scottish Government. The Board received quarterly
capital monitoring reports to keep members fully appraised as to the actual spend-to-
date and the projected capital expenditure outturn position. The last projected outturn
on the capital programme was reported to the Board on 5 March 2012, in the last
quarterly capital monitoring statement (report TRB 2-2012 refers). During the financial
year 2011/2012, the Board incurred £6,122,000 capital expenditure, i.e. an underspend
of £5,402,000 against the approved capital budget. This majority of the variance
against the original budget relates to slippage on the following projects:

£000
inspections to Columns & Piers (170)
North Approach Viaduct Remedial Works (263)
Gantry Miscellaneous (11)
Paintwork to Box Girders (50)
Pier Collision Protection to Navigational Spans (4,788)
Advanced Warning Signs (56)
TOTAL (5,338)

In effect, the underspends that have occurred due to slippage against the Capital
Budget will flow through and cause equivalent overspends in the current year's Capital
Budget (i.e. in 2012/2013). It should be noted that unspent capital grant will be carried
forward to 2012/2013 to offset any additional expenditure.

Copies of the enclosed Accounts will now be sent to the Controller of Audit at the
Accounts Commission for Scotland. He will then instruct the Board's appointed external
auditor (Mr Stephen Reid, Engagement Director, KPMG) to commence his audit of the
Accounts. The outcome of the audit will be reported back to the Board in due course.

TRB13-2012 - Unaud Acs-180812



5 POLICY IMPLICATIONS
This report has been screened for any policy implications in respect of Sustainability,
Strategic Environment Assessment, Anti-Poverty and Equality Impact Assessment and
Risk Management. There are no major issues identified.

8 CONSULTATIONS

The Bridge Manager and Clerk to the Board have been consulted on the content of this
report.

7 BACKGROUND PAPERS

None.

MARJORY M STEWART
TREASURER 8 JUNE 2012

TRA13-2012 - Unaud Acs-180812
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

UNAUDITED
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
MEMBERS AND OFFICIALS

The Board comprises 12 eiected members who ara appointed by the three consiltuent local autharities to serve on
the Board. Dundee City Coundil nominates 8 mambers, Angus Councii hava 1 membsar and Fife Councli nominate
the remaining 5 members. Fallowing the previous Scottish Local Governmant Elsctions that were heid in May 2007
it was agreed by the Board that Dundee City Councii would continue 1o act as isad authority to the Board, and
consaquently, the Councli are required to appolnt officers o serve as officiais of the Board, At the end of financial
vear 2011/2012, the Members and Officials of the Board were:

Dundee City Councll

Councillor David Bowes
i Counclilor Will Dawson
i1 Counciilor Ken Lynn
{1 Counciilor Mohammed Asif
= Councilior Tom Ferguson (Vice Chair)
'/ Bailie Rod Wallace

Counclilor Andraw Arbuckie {Chair)
Counciiier JIm Young

Counclilor David MacDairmid
Councliior Margaret Taylor
Counciilor Ross Vettraino

Contact detalls: _

Bridge Manager _Englnear Clerk Treasurer

Bridge Office cfo Dundea Chy Councll c/o Dundee City Council c/o Dundee Clty Gouncll

Marine Parade Clty Developmsnt Dapt Corporate Services Dept Corporate Sarvices Dept

Dundes 50 Morth Lindsay Strest 21 Clty Square 50 North Lindsay Streat

01362-221881 Dundes Dundes Dundes

tain.mackinnon@tayroad 01382-433711 01362-434202 (1382-433566
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

Bridge Managear's Report

Organisational Changes

In March 2012, the Clerk to the Board, Patricia Mcliquham retired after holding the position for 16 years.
Roger Mennie, Head of Demacratic and Legal Services, Dundee City Councll, was appointed Cierk to the
Board as of 1 Aprii 2012.

The current Chair, Andrew Arbuckie, Is not seeking re-siaction to Fife Councii and wiil be standing down
as Chalr after the Local Government Eiections on 3 May 2012,

The Bridge Manager would like o extend his thanks to the outgoing Chair and Clerk to the Board for thelr
support and assistance.

Management Arrangement with Scottish Government

During this peried, the main point of contact with the Scottish Government continued to be the Trunk Road
and Bus Opsrations Team of Transport Scotland. Meetings have been held on a reguiar basis bstween
Board Officers and officers from the Trunk Road and Bus Operations Team to discuss financial matters
elc.

Contracts
Piar Colilsion Protection Works

The Bridge Manager, in conjunction with the Engineer to the Board, has been extersively invoived in the
design and construction process for the Pier Calilsion Protection Works contract, which was awarded to
Voaiker Stevin in January 2011, iIn addition o tha design and construction process, the Bridge Manager
has worked with the Harbour Master and Voiker Stevin regarding navigetion issues associated with the
works.

Variable Message Signs

Ongoing probiems with the provision of an electrical supply have resulted in further delay to the
compietion of this project. The finai work to provide power to the sile was completed in March 2012 and i
Is anticipated that the final sign instaliation wiil now be completed in the May 2012,

Maintengnce Gantries

The Board's two self propeiled maintenance gantries were subjested to a full Prncipie Inspection and
refurbishment programme. The refurbishment works, which inciuded the removal and replacemsnt of the
slew ring mechanlsms, were carried out in-house and wili add several years to the lifespan of the ganiries
before full replacement will be required.

Dundee Centrai Waterfront Development

Contract 2 1o reconstruct the Perth off ramp was compieted in Navember 2011 and during the works there
were only nominal effecls on bridge users. Contract 3 for the demoiition and reconstruction of the
remaining ramps was awarded to Sir Robert McAlpine and the Bridge Manager was involved In the
Contractor interview and assessment elément of the procurement process. To date tha bulk of the works
hava had litile or no effect on bridge users.

Traffic

Due to the ongoing work to reconfigure the bridge approeach spans as part of the Dundee City Walerfront
Deveiopment there have been prolonged periods where the traffic counters have been unavallabie for use
therefore there has besn insufficient data coliested to pravide meaningful comparison of iraffic flows. On
compietion of the reconfiguration of the bridge approaches the traffic counters wiil be reinstated and full
traffic figures coliected for future reports,
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One or both ianes on the bridge were ciosed on a number of occaslons over the past twelve months. The
tabie below summarises the reasons and number of cecurrences:-

Wind Wind Wind Minor Breakdowns | Works Dsbris
spoed speed > | spesd > | accidents related coilectlon
> 80mph | 60mph 45mph closures etc
Closed ifo| CarsOniy [ No
all Doubis
Vehicies Deck
buses
7 24 72 13 g9 260 313

The number of wind speed restrictions was conslderably higher than previous years with full closures
being impiemented on 7 occasions. Five of the closures occurred in the 4 week period between B
December 2011 and 3 January 2012, The number of other restrictions due fo high winds aiso increased

substantiaily.

Staffing Issues
Staff Establishment

There has been no change to the number of permanent posts within the staff establishment which stands

as foliows:-

Administration 3]
Operationai 15
Maintenance 14
Cleaner {P/T) . |
Totai 28

lain Mackinnon

Bridge Manager

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board
B June 2012




TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
TREASURER'S REPORT

introduction
This report Is intended as a commentary on the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board's financlal position, as presented
within the Statement of Accounts for the financial year 2011/2012,

Statement of Responsibiiltles for the Statement of Accounts {see page 9)
This statement sets oul the main financiai responsibilities of the Board and the Treasurer,

The Aceounting Statements (ses pages 10 to 41)

Movementi In Raservas Slatemeni:

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Board, analysed Into
'usable reserves' {I.e. those thal can be appilied to fund expenditure) and 'unusabie reserves'.

Comprehansive Income & Expenditure Account:

This statemant shows the accounting cost In the year of providing services in accordance with generaliy
accepted accounting praciices.

Balance Sheet:
Shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and llabliitles recognised by the Board,

Cash Flow Statement:
Shows the changes in cash and cash equivaients of the Board during the reporting period.

Notes to the Financial Statements:

These are intended to give the reader further information which is not separately detalied In the financial .

statements. They also inciude the Accounting Policles which set out the basis upon which the financiai
statements have bean prepared and expigins the accounting frestment of both general and specific items,

Annual Govarnance Statement {(ses page 42)

This statement sets out the Board's Corporate Govemance arrangaments, expiaining how the Board conducts
its business, both internaily and in its deaiings with othars. The main components of the system are listed,
together with any significant weaknesses that have been identified and the remedial action taken.

Remuneration Report (see page 44)
This statement sets out the remuneration and accrued pension banefits of the senior empioyee of the Beard
and the poilcy context, In accordance with Scottish Government regulations,

Revanue Expenditure

The Tay Road Bridge Joint Board, at its meeting on 13 December 2010, approved the 2011/2012 Revenue
Budget. The final budget showed a break-even position. The projected General Reserve balance as at 31
March 2012 wouid be £1,107,451. However, subsaquent underspends fotalling £63,140 were achlieved in
2010/2011 (after the budget for 2011/2012 was set) which had the effect that the projected Generai Reserve
balance as at 31 March 2012 Increased 1o £1,160,591,

The Board recsived quartery Revenue MonHoring reports during 2011/2012 In order to keep the members
fully appraised as to the projected revenue outturn position.

The following table reconciies the Revenue Budget approved by the Board on 13 December 2010 fo the
ravised budget figures that are included in the Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement shown on
page 11, The actual cutturn for 201172012 was a net overspend against budget of £8,000 and the detalled
variance ansiysis is set out on pages G and 7.
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Staff Costs (Underspend £38,000)
Mainly reflects posts that have been held vacant during the year. in addition, expenditure on overtime has
baen fower than budgeted following a reduction In the ievel of overtime worked due to the bridge gantrles
being unavaiiable during the year.

Property Costs (Underspend £19,000)
Reflects lower sxpenditure reiating to electricity costs dus to a new conlract belng negotiated at the start of
the year. In addition, expenditure on ground malntenance at the Fife landfaii has reduced following the
decision to take these duties in-house.

Supplies & Services (Underspend £26,000)

Due to ongoling capital contracts there was a reduction in the amount of bridge maintenance work carried out
during the year which has resufted In lower than anticipated expenditure on the purchase of equipment and
materials, plant hire and other misceliansous suppiles and services. Additionaily, there was an underspend
on de-lcing materials due to the mild winter. These varlances were partly offset by additional costs incurred
on upgrading weather monitering software and unpianned repairs required to the road barrler at Fife and the
walkway [ift,

Transport Cosfs { Qverspend £2,000)

Refiecls increased expenditure on repairs and maintenance as unplanned repalrs were required on one of the
vehicies. This was partly offset by minor underspends in a number of budget headings inciuding travel and
subsistence, and business mileage as mere training has either been brought in-house or on-site.

Third Parly Faymenis { Underspand £10,000)

Reflects savings relating to the Pier Scour Protection survey being delayed to coincide with the Pier Collision
Protection Works in 2012/2013, as well as a shorifall in the amount of professional fees for the cathodic
proteclion system due to iack of access, and reduced charges for police services as the terms were
renegotlated with Tayslde Police. These variances were partiy offset by additional professionat fees required
due o an Increase in struclural inspections required.

Carporate and Damocratic Gore Cosis ( Underspend £2,000)
Due to a reduction In external audit fees.

Other Operating Income and Expenditure ( Income Shertfall £5,000)
Reflects the fact that the originai budget was over-estimated due to higher levels of income In previous years.

Financing and Invastment Income and Expenditure { Increased income £13,000)
Reflects increase [n Intersst received on bank balances due to higher than anticipated average balances due
{o large amounts of Capital Grant income.

Non-Specific Grant income { Income Shorifall £110,000)
Reflects the fact that any unused Revenue Grant (with conditions) is to be held in creditors so that it can be
applled to mafch expenditure in future years.

General Reserve
There was a break-even position for the financial year 2011/2012. This gives a total General Reserve balance
of £1,160,581 at 31 March 2012.

Capital Expenditure and Financing
During 2011/2012, the Board incurred capital expenditure of £6,122,000 on the following projects:-
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£000
North Approach Viaduct Remedial Works 7
Carrlageway Resurfacing 6
Ganiry 14
Fife Abutment Bearing Replacement 40
Pler Collision Protection 5,952
Advanced Warning Signs 7
Other Projects 28
) 6122

Capliai expenditure was funded as folfows;

) £000
Capital Grant from the Scotlish Government §,118
Capital Recelpts 3

8422

In addition to above, an asset of £3.99m has been recognised in the Balance Sheel. This reiates to the new
western off-ramp which had been constructed by Dundee City Council as part of the ceniral waterfront
deveiopment and subsequently transferred to the Board.

Control of Revenue and Capltal Expenditure

The control of both the revenue and capital expenditure of the Board is an angoing and substantlal exercise
which requires a positive contribution from staff and eiected members to ensura that the Board's financlai
objectives are achleved and that financial resources are fully utiiised.

Penslan Liabiiity (IAS 19)

Under iAS 19 (Employee Benefits} the Board is required to inciude figures in its Statement of Accounts
relating 1o the assets, liabillties, Income and expenditure of the pension schemes for its employees. i has
been estimated that the Board had a net penslon liabliity of £2,072,000 as at 31 March 2012. The estimated
net pension liability at 31 March 2011 was £1,747,000, A decrease in the real interest rate and changes in tha
underlylng assumptions used o calcuiate scheme liabllities have ceused an increase In ilabliitles. This was
partly offset by an increase in the value of scheme assets, resulting in the overall net liabiiity Increasing by
£325,000.

Acknowledgements

During the 2011/2012 financial year the Board’s financiai position has required continuous scrutiny and sirict
budgstary conirol. | would fike to thank the Bridge Manager, Bridge Engineer and their staff in controliing the
Board's expenditure and income. In addition, | wish to mention my appreeiation of the help and co-operation
provided during the financiai year by the elected members and by Patricia Mcilquham, Cierk to the Board.

I wouid aiso like 1o acknowiedge the support and contribution made by Patricia Mcliquham wha retired in
March 2012 after holding the position of Clark to the Board for 16 years. Furthermore, i also wish to axtend
my appreciation for the contribution made by the current chalr, Andrew Arbuckle, who is not seeking re-
giection o Fife Councii and has stood down as chair after the Local Governmant eiections on 3 May 2012,

Finaily, | would conciude my report by thanking all staff who coniributed to the preparation of the Board's
2011/2012 Statement of Accounis.

M WA e oot

Marjory M Stewart, FCCA, CPFA
Treasurer

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board

8 June 2012
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

The Joint Board's responsibilities

The Joint Board is required to:

¢ make arrangements for the proper administration of its financglal affairs and to secure that one of its officers
has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this Joint Board, that officer is the
Treasurer;

* manage its affairs to secure economic, éfficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its assets,

= approve the Audiied Statement of Accounts.

The Treasurer’s responsibliities

The Treasurer is responsible for the preparation of the Joint Board's statement of accounts in accordance with

proper practices set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the Unlted

Kingdom ('the Code’).

in preparing this stalement of accounts, the Treasurer has:

« selected suitable accounting policies and then appiied them consistantly,

+ mads Judgements and estimates that were reasonabie and prudent;

» complled with the Code of Practice.

The Treasurar hag aiso;
» kapt proper accounting records which were up to date;
+ taken reasonable steps for the pravention and detectlon of fraud and other Irregularities.

The Slatament of Accounts presents a tile and falr view of the financiai position of the Jaint Board at the
accounting date and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2012.

Mo Reoredft

Marjory M Stewart, FCCA, CPFA
Treasurar

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board

B June 2012



TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT

This statement shows the movement in the year on ihe different reserves held by the Board, anaiysed inlo usable
raserves’ (Lo, thoss thal can be applied to fund expenditure ) and ‘unusable reserves,’ The Surpius or (Deficit) on the
Pravision of Services line shows the true sconomic cosl of providing the Board's services, more detalls of which are shown
in the Comprehansive income and Expenditure Stalement, These are different from the statulory amounts required to be
charged o the General Reserve Balance. The iNel increase / {Decreasa) befors Transfers to Earmarked Reserves fing
shows the statutory Gensrai Reserve balance befors any discrelionary lransfers to or from eammarked roserves
undertaken by the Board.

Capital
General Granis Totai Totai
Fund Unapplied Usable  Unusabie Board
Baiance Accoun! Reserves Resarves Resgerves
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 31 March 20610 {1,454) {1.504) {2,958)  {47,252) {50,210)
Mavameant In Regerves during 2040/14
Surpius or {desficit) on provision of
sorvices {1,558) - {1,558} - {1,588)
Cther Comprehensive Expenditure
and Income - - - {604) {604)
Total Comprehensive Expenditure and
Incoma (1.558) - {1,658} {604) (2,162)
Adjustments between accounling basis
& funding basis under reguiations {note 4) 1,861 {1,035) B16 (816) -
Net (increass) /Decraase bofore
Transfers lo Earmarked Reserves 293 {1,035) (742) {1,420) (2,162}
Transfers lo / {from) Earmarked Reserves - - - - -
{increase) / Decrease In 2010/11 293 {1,035) {742) {1,420) (2,182}
Baiance at 31 March 2011 carrled
forward (1,161) (2.539) (3,700) {48,872 {52,372}
oV in Reserves durl
Surpius or {deflcli} an provision of
sopvices {11,312} - {11,312) - (11.312)
Other Comprehensive Expenditure and
income - - - 355 355
Totai Comprehensive Expenditure and
income (11,312) . (11,312) 3ss {10,95T)
Adjustments between accounting basis &
funding basis under regulations {note 4) 11,312 {2,681) 8,631 {8,631} -
Nst {Increasa) { Decrease before
Transfers io Earmarked Reserves B {2.681) {2,681) {8,276} (10,957)
Transfere 1o / {from} Eamarked Reserves - - - - -
{(increase) / Decreasa in Year - (2,681) (2,681) (8,276) {10,957}
Balance at 31 March 2012 carried
forward {1,181} {5.220) (6,381) (656,948) (63,329)
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

This statement shows the aceouniing cost In the year of providing services In accordance with generally aceepted
aceguniing praciices.

201012011

Gross Gross Net
Expenditure  Income  Expendlture
Hincoma)

£000 £000 £000
1,108 - 1,108
€8 - 68
2889 - 289
29 - 29
137 - 137
1442 - 1,442
23 - 23
- {554) {554)
3,094 (554) 2,540
- 2} (@)
83 (3N 26
- {4,122} (4,122}
3,157  {4,7115) {1,558}
- {604) {804}
- {604) {604}
3157  (6:319) (2,162}

Expenditure

Slaff Costs

Property Costs

Suppiles and Services
Transport Costs

Third Party Paymenls
Depreclation & Impaiment

Corporate and Democralic
Core
Non Distributed Cosls

Caost Of Services

Other Operaling incomea &
Expendilure {nole 5)

Financing and invesiment
income and Expendilure
{note 8)

Non-Spacific Grant income
(note 7}

{Surpius) or Deficil on
Provislon of Services
{note 13}

(Surplug) or defick on
revaiualion of fixed assels
Actuarial {Galns} f Lossas on
Pension Assels / Liablittles
Other Comprahensivs
income and Expenditure

Total Comprahensive
incoma and Expenditure

2011/2012
Budgeted Gross Gross Net
Net Expondlture  Income  Expendlture
Expanditure i {incomne)

£000 £000 £000 £000
1,116 1,078 - 1,078
61 42 . 42
301 275 - 275
36 38 - 38
§51 144 - 141
1,453 1,453 - 1,453
24 22 . 22
3142 3,049 - 3,049
{&1) €9 {3} 86
{83} 1 {97) {96)
(14,441) - {14,331} {14,331)
(11,321} 3,119 (14,431) (31,312
355 355 ] 355
355 3z5 - 355
{14,966) 3,474 (14,431} {16,957}
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

BALANCE SHEET

The Balance Sheet shows the vaiue as al the Balance Sheal date of the assels and ilabiiilles racognised by the Board.
The nel assols of the Board {assals less lablities) are malched by the reserves heid by the Board. Reserves ara reported
in two categories, Tha first calegory of reserves Is usable reserves, L.e. those reserves that the Board may use to provide
services, subject o the need to maintain a prudent ievel of reserves and any stajutory limitalions on their use (for example
the Capitai Receipts Resgarve that may conly be used {o fund capital expenditure). The second calegory of reserves Is
unusable reserves i.e. those that the Board Is nol abie o use io provide services. This category of reserves inciudes
reserves that hold unreailsed gains and losses {for example the Revaiualion Reserve), where amounts would only
become avalisble lo provide services If the assets ara seld; and reserves that hoid Eiming differences shown In the
Movement in Reserves Stalement line ‘Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under raguiations’.

31 March
2011
£000

50,310 Property, Pianl & Equipment
73 investment Property
50,383 Total Long Term Assets

47  Inventories
20 Short Term Deblors
4078  Cash and Cash Equivalenls

4,443  Total Current Assets

(406) _ Short Term Cradiors
{406} Total Current Liabiilties

(1,747) _ NelPension Liablities
(1,747) Totai Long Term Liabilities

52,373 Nel Assels
3,700  Usable reserves

48,673  Unusable Resarvas
§2.373 Totai Reserves

Note 31 March

2012
£000
20 58,300
19 85
58,985
22 47
23 35
12 8,704
8,783
24 (2,367)
(2,367)
(2,072)
{2,072)
63,329
8 6,381

9

56,948

63,329

Mo Feose (3

Marjory Stewart FCCA, CPFA
Treasurer

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board
8 June 2012
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The Cash Fiow Siatement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Board during the reporiing pericd. The
statemenl shows how the Board generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by ciassifying cash flows as operating,
invesling and financing aclivities. The amount of nel cash fiows arising from operaling aclivilies is a key indlicalor of the
axtant {o which the operations of the Board are funded by way of grant income or from the recipients of services provided
by the Board. investing aclivilies represent the extenl to which cash outflows have been mads for rescurces which ara
intended to contribute 1o the Board's fulure service dellvery. Cash flows ardsing from financing activities are usefui in
pradicting claims on fulure cash flows by providers of capilal {i.e. borrowing} to the Board,

2010111 2011712
£000 £060
{1,556} Nel {surplus) or deficit on the provision of servicas {11,378}

Adjust net surplus or defict on the provision of services for non
{939) cash movemanls (1,503)
Adjust for Hems included in the nel sumpius or deficil on the
____2¥54 provision of servicas thal are Investing and financing activitles 12,714
259 Net cash flows from Operating Activitias (167}
(812} investing Aclivities {nole 10} {4,445}
{12) Financing Aciiviies {note 11) (13}
(565) Net (increase) or Decrease in cash and cash equivalants {4,825)
3,511 Cash and cash aquivalents at the beginning of the reporting pericd 4076
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period
4,078 ({note 12) 8,701
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE 4OINT BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A Generai Principles

The Statemant of Accounts summarises the Bearnd's Iransactions for the 2011/2012 financial year and Its position
al the year-end of 31 March 2012, The Board Is required io prepare an annual Statsment of Accounts by the Locai
Authority Accounts (Scotiand) Regulations 1985, Section 12 of the Local Govemment In Scolland Act 2003
requires that they be prepared In accordance with proper accounting practices, These praclices primarily comprise
the Code of Praclice on Local Authority Accounling in the United Kingdom 2091/12 and the Service Reporting
Code of Pmctice 2014/12, supported by intemational Financiai Reporing Standards {(iIFRS). The accounting
convention adopled in the Statement of Accounts Is principally historical cost, madified by the revaiuation of certaln
calegories of non-current assets,

B Accruais of incore and Expenditure

Activily Is accounted for in the year that fi takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or received. In
partfcular:

. Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Board transfers the significant risks and rewards
of cwnership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic banefits or sarvice potential associated with
the transaciion wili low to the Board,

. Revenue from the provision of sarvices s recognisad when the Board can measure reflably the
perceniage of completion of the transaction and il Is probabie that economic benefils or service potential
associated with the transaction wili flow to the Board.

. Suppilas are recorded as expendilure when they are consumed — where there s a gap bstween the date
supplies are received and their consumplion, they are canied as Inventaries on the Baiance Sheet.

. Expenses in reiation fo services recelved {includlng those rendered by the Board's employess) ame
recorded as expenditura when lhe services are received, rather than when paymenls are made.

. Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not baen recelved ar paid, a dabtor
or creditor for the relevant amount ks recorded In the Balance Sheet. Where there is evidence thal debls
are unilkely to be setled, tha balance of deblors Is wiitten down and a charge made lo revenue for the
Income that might not be coliected.

Cc Cash and Cash Equivaients

Cash is represontsd by cash in hand and deposlts with financial institutions repayabie without penaity on notice of
nol more than 24 hours. Cash equivalenls comprse short term ending that is repayable on demand or within 3
monthe of the Baiance Shest date and that is readily convertibie 1o known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of
change in vaiue, in the Cash Fiow Statemenl, cagh and cash equivaients ara shown nel of bank overdrafts that ara
rapayable on demand and form an integral part of the Board's cash managemaent.

D Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors

Changes In accounting policies are only made when required by propar accounling praclices or when the change
provides more refiable or relevant Information about the effect of Iransactions, other events and conditions on tha
Board's financiat posiion or financial perfermance, Where a change is made, it is applled ratrospectively by
adjusling opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as If the new policy had always been
appliied. Changes in accouniing estimates are accounted lor prospeclively, i.e, in the current and future years
affected by the change. Maleriai emors discoverad in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period,
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E Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

The Comprehensive Income and Expendliure Statement is debfied with the following amounts to record the cost of
hoiding fixed assels during ihe year:

. depreciation atiribulabie o the assets usad by the relevani sarvice

* revaluation and Impairment iosses on assels used by the service where there are no accumulated gains in
the Revaiuation Reserve against which the lossss can be written off

The Board s not required {o apply revenue grant recaipts to fund depraciation, revalualion and impalrment iossas.
Depraciation, revaluation and Impairment losses are therefore reversed by way of an adjusting ransaclion with the
Caplial Adjustment Account In the Movement in Reserves Statement,

F Employes Benefits

Banafits Payable During Employment
Short-lem empioyes banefits (those that fail due whoily within 12 months of the year-and), such as wages and

saiaries, pald annual leave and pald sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefils {e.g. cars) for cumenl
smployees, are recognised as an expense in the year In which employaes rander service to the Board, An
accrual Is made against Staff Cosis In the Surpius or Deficit on the Provision of Services for the cost of hoilday
entiliements and other forms of leave eamed by employees but nol laken before the year-end and which
employeas can camy forward into the next financial year, The accrual is made at the remuneration rates appiicabla
i the foliowing financiai year, Any accrual made s required under staluta o be reversed oul of tha General
Resarve by a credit (o the Accumuialing Compensaled Absences Adjustment Account in the Movemanl In
Resarves Statement.

Terminalicn Benofiis

Termination benefils are amounls payabie as a resull of a deelsion by the Board lo terminate an employee's
empioyment before the normal relirement date or &n employee's decision to accepl voluniary redundancy and are
charged on an accruals basis lo the Non Distibuled Costs fine in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Account when the Board Is demonslrably committed to either terminating the empioyment of an employes or group
of employees or making an offer lo encourage voluntary redundancy, Where lerminalion benefils invoive the
enhancement of pensions, stalutory provisions require the Gensrai Reserve balance to be charged with the
amount payable by the Board lo the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calcuialed according to
the relevant accounting standards. in the Movement in Reserves Stalemant, appropriations are required to and
from the Penslens Reserve to remove the notlonal debits and credils for termination benefits reiated to pansions
anhancements and repiace them with dabils for the cash paid to tha pension fund and pensionsrs and any such
amounts payable bul unpald al the year-end.

Post Empioyment Benefits

Employess of the Board ars members of a separate pansion scheme being the Local Govemment Superannualion
Scheme (Tayside Supseranpuation Fund), & defined benefils scheme which Is adminlstered by Dundee Cily
Councli. The scheme provides definad benefils to members {retirement lump sums and pensions), saamed as
employees worked for the Board.

The Local Govermment Pension Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme:

. The llabliiies of the Tayslde Superannuation Fund atiributable to the Board are inciuded In the Balance
Sheel on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method — l.e. an assassment of the fulure payments
that will be made in reiation {0 retirement benefits eamed to date by employees, basad on assumplions
aboul moralily rates, empioyse tumover rales etc, and projections of eamings for current employees,

. Liabilties are discounted to their value al cumrent prices, using a discounl rale of 4.6% (based on the
indicallve rale of relurm on high quality corporate bond, iBoxx AA ratad over 15 year comporale bond
index).

. The assels of lhe Tayside Superannuation Fund attributabie to the Board are inciuded in the Baiance
Shest at their fair value;
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o quoted securities ~ curent bid price
o unquoted securities — professional esiimate
o unilised sacurilies ~ cumrant bid price
o property -~ market vaiue,
. The change in the nat pensions liabijity is analysed Inlo seven components:

o current service cost — the Increase in liabilllies as result of years of service eamed this year -
aliocated in the Comprehensive income and Expenditure Slalement lo Staff Costs

o pasl ssrvice cosl — the Increasge in ilabllilies arsing fram current year declsions whoss effect
reiates to years of service eamed in sarller years — debitad to the Sumpius/Deficit on the Provision
of Services in the Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non Distributed
Cosls

o Interesl cost — the expected increase In the presant value of ilabillies during the year as they
move one year closer io being paid ~ debited lo the Financing and Investment income and
Expenditure fine in the Comprehensive iIncome and Expenditure Statement

o expecied relum on assels — the annual investmant relutn on the fund assels atidbutabie o the
Board, basad on an average of the expected long-term retum — credited lo the Financing and
investment income and Expanditure line In the Comprehensive income and Expendilure
Statement

o gainsflosses on saiiements and curaliments — the resuit of actions lo relleve the Board of
ilablities or events thal reduce the expected future service or accrual of banefifs of empioyees —
debitedfcradited to the Surplus/Daficit on the Provision of Sewvices in the Comprehensive Tncome
and Expenditure Stalement as part of Non Distribulad Costs

o actuaral gains and losses - changss in the net pensions llability thal arise bacause evenls have
not co-incided with assumplions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the acluarias
have updatsd their assumplions - debited to the Peanslons Resarve

o coniributions pald to the Tayside Superannuation Fund -~ cash paid as employer's contribullons
lo tha penslon fund In setllement of ilabilities; not accounted for ag an expense.

in relation to retirement benefits, slatutery provisions require the Generai Reserve balance to be charged with the
amount payabie by the Board {o the pension fund or directly fo penglonars in the year, not the amount calcuiated
according o the relevant accounting standards. in the Movement in Resarves Statement, this means that there
are appropdations to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the nollonal deblts and credits for relirement
benefils and rapiace them with debits for the cash pald to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounis
payable but unpald at the year-end, The negalive balance thal arises on the Penslons Resarve thereby measures
the baneficial impact on the Generai Raserve of belng reguirad {o account for relirement benefits on the basls of
cash flows rather than as benefils are eamed by empioyees.

Discretionary Benefils

The Board aiso has resiricted powers {0 make discrelionary awards of relirement bensfils in the event of early
retiraments. Any liabililies sslimaled lo arise as a resuit of an award {o any member of staff are accrued In the year
of the decision lo make the award and accounted for using the same policles as are applied to the Local
Govemment Pension Schema.

G Events After the Reporilng Perlod

Evenls afier the reporting period are those evenis, bath favourable and unfavaurabie, that occur batween the end
of the reporting period and the dale when the Statement of Accounls Is authorisad for issue. Two fypes of evenls
can be identified:

. those thal provide evidence of conditions thal existed at the end of the repering period - the Statement of
Accounts is adjusted (o raflecl such events

. those thal are Indicalive of condilions that arose after the reporting period ~ the Statement of Accounts |s
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nol adjusted o reflect such events, but whera a category of events wouid have a material effec disclosure
Is made In the notes of the nature of the evenls and their estimated financlai effect

Events taking place after the dats of autharisalion for issus are not refiscted in the Stalemant of Accounts,
H Government Grants and Contributions

Whether pald on account, by Instaiments or in amears, government grants and third party conbribulions and
donatlons are recognised as due to the Board when there is reasonabie assurance that:

«  the Board wiii comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and
] the grants or contributions will be recaived

Amounts recognised as dus 1o the Board are nof credited to the Comprehensive income and Expenditure Account
uniii condilions attaching to the grant or contribulion have been saltisfiad. Condilions are sipulations thal specify
that the futura economic banefils or service polential embodied In the asset acquired using the grant or contribulion
are required lo be consumed by the recipient as specified or fulure sconomic banefits or service polentiai must ba
relumed to the transferor, Monies advanced as grants and contibutions for which conditions have nof been
salisfied are canled in the Baiance Sheet as crediiors, When condllions are satisfied, the grant or contributlon s
crediled io the relevant ine {Non-Specific Grant income} In the Comprehensive income and Expanditure
Statermment. Wherae capital granis are credited fo the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statemant, they are
reversed out of the General Resarve Balance in the Movement In Reserves Stalement. Where the grant has yet to
be used {o financa capital expenditure, it is posied to the Capital Grants Unappiled Account. Where Ii has been
appiled, it is posted i the Capltai Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capitai Granis Unapplied Account are
lransfarmed to the Capitai Adjustment Accounl once they have besn applied.

{ Heritage Assets

The Board's Heritage Assels are held In support of the primary objsclive of increasing knowledge, understanding
and appreciation of the history of the Tay Road Bridge and the sumounding area. Herltage assats are recognised
and measured (including the treatment of revaiuation gains and lossas) in accordance with the Board's accounting
poiicies on properly, plant and equipment. However, some of the measurement ruies are relaxed in relation to
heritage assels as detailed below. The accounting poilcies in reiation to herilage assets ara also presented below.

The Board's heritage assels are actountad for as follows:

The Board holds heritage assels which, in light of the reiaxalion of measurement rules, are nol recognised In the
baiance sheel. The Doard considers that, due lo the unique nature of the assats held and the lack of comparable
vaiues, the cosl of obtaining valualions would be disproportlonate In refation lo the benefits {o the usar's of the
Board's financlal statemenis. As a resull, fair vaiue information is unavaliabie and cost Information is aiso
unknown, These assets are therefore not recognised in the bailance sheet, however, detailed informalion regarding
them is heid on relevant databases.

Heril - |

The carrying amounis of heritage assets are reviewed where there is evidence of impairment, for example where
an item has suffered physical delerioralion or breakage. Any impairment is recognised and measured in
accordante with lhe Board's general poilcies on impaiment.

J invantorles

Inventories ars ingluded in the Balance Sheel at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of Inveniones
is assigned using the Firstin-First-out {FiIFO} costing formuia,

K investment Properties

invastment propertios ara those thal ara used sololy to eam rentals andfor for capltal appreciation. The definitlon is
not me! if the property is used in any way to facliitale the deiivery of sarvices or productlon of goods or is heid for
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sale, investmant properties are measursed Iniliaily at cost and subsagquantiy al fair vaiue, based on the amount al
which the asset couid be exchanged beiween knowledgeabls parties at ann's length. Properties are not
depraciated bul are revaiued annually according to markel conditlons al the yearend, Galns and losses on
revaluation are posled to the Financing and investment Income and Expenditure iine in the Comprehensive income
and Expendilure Stalement. The same trealment Is applied 1o gains and lesses on disposai. Rentais received in
refalion to Invastmenl properties are credlied to the Financing and invesiment income ling and resuil In a gain for
the Generai Reservae Balance. Howaver, revaluation and disposal galns and losses are nol parmitied by stafutory
arangements 1o have an impact on the Balance, The gaing and iusses are thersfore raversed out of the General
Reserve Balance in the Movement [n Reserves Statement and pesled to the Capitai Adjustment Account,

L Leases

Leasas ara ciassifled as finance leases where the terms of the isase transfer substantiaiiy ali the risks and rewards
incldental io ownership of the property, piant or equipment from the lessor lo the lesses. All other isases are
classifiad as operaling ieases, Where a lease covers beth land and bulldings, the fand and buildings elements are
considersd separately for ciassficalion. Amrangements that do no! have the legai status of a lsase but convey a
tight to use an asset in ralum far payment are accounted for under this poilcy where fuifiiment of the arangement
is dependent on the use of speciflc assets.

The Doord as Lessoe
Finance Leases

Property, piant and equipment held under finance jeases is recognised on the Balance Sheel at the
commencemenl of the isase together with an aquivalent deferred jlability for the obligation lo pay the lessor. Where
applicable, any Inilial direct cosls of the Board are added 1o the camying amount of the assal, Any premiums paid
on eniry into & iease are appiied to wriling down the iease [iabillly. Contingent renls are charged as expenses in
the years In which they are incumred.

Lease paymen(s ara apportionad between:

» & charge for the acquigition of the inleresl in the property, plant ar equipment — appiled {o write down the
lease liabliity, and

« a finance charge (debited 1o the Firancing and Investmenl income and Expendilure line In the
Comprehenslve Income and Expenditure Slatament)

Property, Fianl and Equipment recognised under finance isasaes Is accounted far using the relevant accounting
poiicles applied generally {o such assets e.g. deprecialion, revaiualion and Impairment review.

Operaling Leases

Rentals pald under operallng ieases ara charged 1o the Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement as an
axpense. Charges are made on a siraight-iine basis over the iifa of the iease, even If this doss not malch the
pattam of payments {&.g. if there is a rent-free period at the commencement of the isasa).

The Board as Lassor
Finance Leases

Where the Board grants a finance jeass over a properly or an item of piant or equipment, the relevant asset is
writlen out of the Balance Shest as a disposal. Al the commencement of ihe iease, the canying amount of the
assel in the Balance Shest {whether Property, Planl and Equipment or Assels Heid for Sala) Is written off 1o the
Other Operaling Expenditure {ina in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or
jogs on disposal. A gain, representing the Board’s net investment in the isase, is crediled to the same fina in the
Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement aiso as part of the gain or loss on disposal {l.e. netted off
against lha carmying value of the assal at the lime of dispasal), matched by a lease assel in the Balance Shast,

Lease rentais receivable are apportioned betwaen:
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. a charge for the acquisiion of the Intsrest in the property — applied 1o wrile down the lease iiabillty
{logether with any premiums received), and

& finance income (eredited o the Finanting and investment Income and Expenditurs iine In tha
Comprehensive Income and Expendilure Stalement}

Operafing Leases

Where the Boar] granis an operaling leasa over a proparly or an flam of piant or equipmeant, the asset is ratalned
in the Dalance Sheel as a non-current assst and continues to be subject io depreciation, revaiualion and
impairment review, In accordance with the relevant accouniing poilcies. Renlal Income is credied o the
appropriate service iine in the Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made on a straight-
iine basis over the ilfa of the lsase, even if this does not match the patiem of payments {e.g., thers is a premium
pald at the commencement of the leasa). Any initlai direct costs Incurrad In negotlating and amanging the lease are
added 1o the camying amount of the relevant assal and charged as an expense over the iease term on the same
basis as rantal Incoms.

M Proparty, Piant and Equipment

Assels that have physical substance and are hsid for usa In the production or gupply of goods or sewices, for
rental lo others of for adminisirative purposes and that are expected to be used during mora than one financial year
are classifled as Property, Plant and Equipment.

Recognition

Expanditure on the acquistiion, crealion or enhancement of Praperty, Piant and Equipment is capitafised on an
accruais basls, provided thal il Is probable that the fulure economic benefils or service potential associated with the
item wiil flow to the Board and the cosl of the itlem can be measurad reflably. Expenditura that maintains but does
not add fo an assel's potentiai to deliver future economic benefits or service potential {ie. repalrs and
maintenance) is charged as an expensa when It [s incurred.

Measyrement
Assels are Initiaily measurad at cost, comprising:

. the purchase price

. any cosls atiribulable {o bringing the assel tn the iocalion and condltion necessary for It to ba capabie of
operating Ir the manner inlended by management

The Board doss not capitaiise borowing costs incurred whilst assals are under construclion. The cost of assals
acquired other than by purchase Is deemed o be ils fair valus, uniess the acquisilion wili not increase the cash
flows of the Boand. in the iatler case, the cost of the acquisition is the camying amount of the assat given up by the
Board. Donaled assels are measured inftially at falr vaiue. The difference between fair vaiue and any
consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Nor-Specific Grant income iine of the Comprehensiva income
and Expenditure Statement, uniess the donallon has been made conditionaily, Unlii conditions are satisfied, the
galn is heid In the Donaled Asseis Account, Where gains are crediled to the Comprahensive income and
Expanditure Statement, they are reversed out of the Genaral Resarve Baiance to the Capital Adjustment Account
in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Assets are then canied in the Balance Sheel using the foliowing measurement bases;
» infrastructure - depreciated historical cost

. ail other assels « fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the assat In lts existing usa
{existing usa value - EUV)

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value becauss of the speciaiist nature of an asset, depreciated

replacement cosl Is used as an estimate of fair vajue. Assets included in the Balance Shesl at fair value are

revalued sufficlently regulaly to ensure that their carying amount I3 nol materiaily diffarent from thair fair value al

the year-end, but as a minimum every five years, increases In valualions are maiched by credils to the
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Revaiuation Reserve to recognise unreaiised gains, Exceplonally, gains might be credited to the Comprehensiva
income and Expendilure Stalement whers they arise from the reversal of a revalualion or impalment loss
previously charged {o a service. Whare decreases In vaiue are idgntified, the revaivalion loss Is accounted forby:

. where there is a baience of revaluation galns for the asset In the Revaluation Reserve, the camying
amount of the asset Is wrilten down against that balance {up to the amount of the accumuialed gains)

. whera there ig no balance in the Revaluallon Reserve or insufficient balance, the carmrying amount of the
asgel is writlen down against the reisvant ling(s} in the Comprehensive income and Expenditure
Statement

The Rsvalualion Ressrva contsins revalualion gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its formal
impismentation. Galns arising bafore that data have baen consolidated into the Capital Adjusimant Account.

Impaliment

Assets are assessad at each year-and as to whathar there I8 any Indication that an asest may be impaired. Whars
indicalions exist end any possibie differences are estimalad to be malerial, the recoverabie amount of tha assel is
estimaled and, whers this i lass than the camrying amount of the assat, an impaimaent ioss is recognised for the
shorttall, Where impairment iosses are identified, they are accounted for by:

] whars there is a balance of revaiualion gains for the asss! in the Revaiualion Reserve, the carying
amount of the assat is written down against that balance (up io the amount of the accumulated gains)

. where thers Ig no balance in the Revaiuallon Reserve or insufficient balance, the carmylng amount of the
assel Is writlen down against the relevani line{s} In the Comprehansive incoms and Expendilure
Statement

Where an impalrmant ioss i$ reversed subsequenlly, tha reversal is credited to tha Comprehensive incame and
Expanditure Stalement, up to the amount of the ordginal loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have baen
charged if the loss had not been recognised,

Disposais

Whan [t bacomes probabie that the camrying amount of an agsel wili be racovered principafly through a sale
transaction rather than through ils conlinuing usa, itis reciassifiad as an Agset Heid for Sale. The asset is revaiued
immedialely before reclasgsification and than ¢anjed &l the lewer of this amount and fair value lass cosis to sell.
Whare there Is 8 subsequent decreass (o fair vaiue isss cosis o seli, the loss is postad to the Other Opsraling
Expanditure fina in tha Comprehansive Incoma and Expendifurs Stalement. Galns In falr vaiue are ecognised only
up to the amount of any pravicusly recognised losses, Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale. Assels
that are io ba abandonad or scrapped are not reciassifled as Assais Held for Sais.

When an asset is disposad of or decommissioned, the canmying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether
Proparty, Piant and Equipment or Assels Heid for Sale) Is written off to tha Other Operating Expenditure #ne in tha
Comprehensive incoma and Expendilure Statemen! as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipls from
disposals (if any) are cradiled to the same iine in the Comprehensive income and Expandiure Statemant aiso as
part of the gain or ioss on disposai {i.e, netied off against the canying vaiue of the asset at the ime of disposai).
Any revalyation galns accumuiated for the asset in tha Revaluation Reserve sre transferred to the Caplial
Adjusiment Account. Amounts recelved for tisposals ars calagorisad &s capilal recaipts. The balance of recelpls is
required o be credited to the Capital Receipts Resarve, and can then only be used for new capltal investmant or
set aside to reduce the Board's underying need to bomow (the capital financing requirement). Recelpis are
appropriated to the Resarve from the Ganemi Reserva in tha Movement in Reserves Statamant. Amounts are
appropriated o tha Capilal Adjusiment Account from the Genesrali Reserve in tha Movement in Reserves
Statement.

Depreciation

Dapreciation is provided for on all Propardy, Plant and Equipment assats by the systematic ailocation of thelr
depreclable amounis over their ussful ilves. An exception is mads for assets withoul a delerminable finite usefid
ilfa (i.e. freghold jand} and assels thal are not ya{ availabie for use (i.6., assels under construction).

Daprecation is cateuiated on the foliowing bases: -
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. buiidings - straight-iine aliocalion over the usafui ife of the property as estimated by the vaiuer,
. vehicles, plant and equipment - straight line allocation over betwaen 3 and 10 years.
. infrastructure ~ stralght-iine alfocation over batween 10 and 85 yaars,

Whats an ilem of Properly, Piant and Equipment asset has major componenis whose cost is significant in relallon
lo the total cost of the item, the componants are depreclated separately. Revaluation gains are also depreciated,
with an amount equal to the difference batween cument vaiue depredation charged on assels and the dspreciation
that would have been chargeable based on thelr historicai cost being lransfarred sach year from the Revaiuation
Reserve {o the Capitat Adjustmant Account.

N Provisions, Contingent Liabliltles and Conlingent Assets

Provisions

Provislons are made where an avent has faken place that gives the Beard a iegal or consfructive obiigation thal
probably requiras settlement by a transfor of economic benafits or sanvice potential, and a reliable estimale can be
mada of the amount of the obiigation, For exampis, the Board may ba invoived in a court case thal could
sventually resuit In the making of a setiement or the payment of compensation. Provislons are charged as an
expense {o tha appropriale fine in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditura Stalament In the year thal the
Board becomes aware of the obilgation, and measured at tha besl estimate al the Balanca Shael date of the
expendilurg required to settfe the obligation, taking into account relevant rdsks and uncertainties, When payments
are svenlually made, thay are charged to the provision caried in tha Balance Sheet. Eslimated seiflaments are
reviswad at the end of each financiai year - whare il bacomes iess than probabie that a transfer of sconomic
benefils wili now ba required (or a lower setlement than anlicipated I8 made)}, the provision is reversed and
cradiled back to the relevant heading. Where some or ali of tha payment required to settie a provision s expactad
o be mecovered from another party (e.g. from an Insurance claim), this is only recognised as Income for the
mlevant sarvice if it is virtually certain that relmbursemaent wili ba receivad if the Board selties the obiigation.

Contingent Llabllities

A conlingant llabliity arises where an event has faken place that gives the Board a possible obiigation whose
existenca wili only be confirmed by the oecumrence or otherwise of uncerain fulure evenis not wholly within the
gontroi of the Board. Contingent liabilities aiso arige In circumstances where a provision wouid otheiwlse ba made
but slther if is not probable that an outflow of rasources will be required or the amount of the obilgation cannot be
measured rellably. Contingent llabililes are not recognised in the Baiance Sheet but are disclosed In a note to the
accounts.

Contingent Asgets

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Board a possibla asset whose existence
wiii only be confirmed by the occurrence or otharwise of uncertain fulure evenis nol wholly within the control of the
Board. Contingent assels are not recognised in the Balance Shae! but are disciosed in a note 1o the accounis
whare it is probabie that thare will be an Inflow of economic bansfils or servica potenlial,

O Raserves

Ressrvas are created by sppropraling amounis oul of the General Resarve In the Movament In Reserves
Statement. When expendliure to be financed from a reserve is Incurred, it is charged to the appropriate heading in
thal year lo count against the SwpiusiDeficit on the Pravision of Services in the Comgprehensive income and
Expenditura Statement, The reserva Is then appropriated back inlo the Genseral Resarve Balance in the Movament
in Resarves Statemant so that there Is no net charge agalnst grant receipts for the expandilure. Cerlain resarves
are kapt lo manage the accounting processes for hon-cunvent assels, financial instruments and retirement bensfils
and these reserves do not represent usabia resources for the Board. Further information on the Board's resarves is
conlained in notes 8 and 9.

P VAT

VAT payable is inciuded as an expense only lo the extent thal It Is not recoverabie from Her Majesty's Revenus

ang Customs. VAT receivablz is sxcluded from incoms.
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item

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

in applying the accounting pollcies set oul in Note 1, the Board has had to make certain judgements about future
svenls, Tha key judgement made in the Statemant of Accounts reiales to the high degree of uncerlainly about
fulure ievals of funding for public badiss. The Board has determined that this uncertainty Is not sufficlent io provida
an Indication thal the assels of the Board might be kmpaired as a result of a need fo reduce ievels of service
provislon,

ASSUMPTIONS MADE ABOUT THE FUTURE AND OTHER MAJOR SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The Slalemant of Accounts containg estimaled figures that are based on assumptions mads by the Board about
the future or that ars otherwise uncerlaln. Eslimales are made laking Into account histordcal experiance, current
Irends and other relevant factors. Howsver, because balances cannot be datermined with certalnty, actual resuils
could ba materiaily diffarenl from the assumptions and eslimales.

The ltems In the Board's Baiance Sheet at 31 March 2012 for which there s a significant risk of materiai adjustment
in the forthcoming financial ysar are as follows:

Uncadainties Effect if Aclual Resuils Differ from

Property, Plant and Equipment

.- Assumplions .

if the useful ife of assels is
reducad, depreclation increases
and the carrying amount of the
asgels faiis.

Asgsaels are depreciated over ussfui
livas that are depsandent on
assumplions aboul the favei of
repairs and mainlenance that will ba
incurrad In retation (o individuai
assels. Tha cumant aconomic
climata makes i uncertain thal the
Boari will be abie to sustain its
current spending on repairs and
mainienance, bringing Into doubt the
usefuj iives assigned (o asssels.

it Is estimatad that the annual
depreciation chargs for bulidings
wouid increase by £86,000 for
avery year that ussfui lives had to
ba reducead.

Pansions Liabliity

Estimation of the net liabiiity to pay
pensions depends on a number of
complex judgemaents relaling to the
discount rate usad, the raie at which
salarias arg projecied {o increase,

changes In relirement ages, mortallty
rates and expacted retums on pansion

fund assels. A firm of consuling
actuares is angaged lo provida the
Board with sxpert advica aboul the
assumptions {o be applied.

The effects on the nei pensions
{abfilty of changes in individual
assumplions can be measured,
Forinstance, a8 0.1% increase in
the discount rale assumption would
resull In a decrease in the pansion
ilability of £157,000.

Howavar, the assumplions Intaract
in complex ways. During 2011112,
the Board's aciuaries advigad that
the net pansions ilability had
increased by £529,000 as a rosult
of aslimates belng corrected as a
resuil of experiance and increased
by £885,000 atiributabie to
updating of ihe assqmpﬁons.

This iist doss not inciude any assels and ilabililies thal have are caniad at fair vaiue based on a recently obsarvad

market price.
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4, MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT - ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING BASIS AND FUNDING

BASIS UNDER REGULATIONS

This note detalis the adjusiments that are mads lo the lotai comprehensive income and expanditure racognisad by
tha Board in the year In accordance with proper accounting practice o the rescurces that are spacifiad by statuory
provisions as being avaliabla to the Board to meet future capital and revenus expenditure.

201152012

Generat
Fund
Baiance
£000

Capital Grants Movement in
Unappiied Unusabie
Ascount Reserves
£000 EODO

201112
£000

Adjustmants involving the Capital Adjustment Account:

Raversal of llemg debitad or crediled to the Comprohengiva
income and Expendilure Slatement

Charges for depreclation and impatmment of non current
asgels

(1.453)

- 1 |453 -

Movasments in the fair vaiue of invesimant Proparties

12

- (12} .

Capital grants and contributions that hava bean appiled to
capital financing

10,108

- {10,109} -

Amounis of non current assels wiittan off on disposalor sale
as part of the galn/loss on disposal lo the Comprehensive
income and Expandilure Statement

(63)

- 63 .

Adjustments involving the Capital Receipts Raserve:

Transfer of sais procesds credited as part of the galnfioss
on disposai io the Comprehensive income and Expandiiure
Siatement

Usa of the Capltai Recalpis Reserve lo finance new capilai
expenditure

3

(3}

Adjustment involving the Capital Grants Unappiled
Account

Reversal of unapplied capitai granls and contributions
eredited o the Comprehensiva income and Expendilure
Siatemant

2,691

(2.681) - :

AdJustmants involving the Pensions Resarva:

Revarsal of items relating to post employment benefits
deblfed or cradited to the Surplus or Deficlt on the Provislon
of Services in the Comprehanslve Income and Expenditure
Statamant (sea nole 15)

{(118)

- 116 -

Employer's penslons coniributlons and direct paymenis to
gansioners payable in the yoar

147

- {147) "

Adjustment Involving the Accumuiating chpnnss;{ed
Absences Adjuslmsenl Account

et e

Amount by which officer remunaration charged to the
Comprshensive income and Expenditure Staiement on an
accruals basis is diffarent from remuneration chargeable in
tha year In accordance with statulory requirements

{2)

Totai Adjustments

11,312

(2,681) (8,621) -
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2010/2011 General Capltai Grants

Fund
Balance
£000

Unapplied
Account
£000

Movemant in

Unusable
Resarvas
£000

201011
£000

AdJustmeants invoiving the Capital AdJustmaent Account: ‘

Reversal of itams g' ebited or gredited lo the Cdmgrehansive
Income and Expendllurs Stalsment;

Charges for depreciation and Impaiment of non currant {1,442}
assels

1,442

Movemaents in the falr valua of invesiment Propertias 15

(15

Capital grants and contributions thal have bean appliad to 1,805
capilal financing

(1,805}

Amounts of non current assals writlen off on disposal or sale 4
as part of the gainfioss on disposai to the Comprehenslve
income and Expendliure Statement

4

Adjustments invoiving the Capitai Receipis Reservea:

Transfer of saie proceeds cradited as par of the gain/ioss -
on disposai to the Comprehansive incomae and Expenditure
Sialemeant

Use of the Capilal Receipts Reserve to finance new capital {2}
expendilure

(2)

AdJustment involving the Gapital Grants Unapplled
Account

Reversai of unappiied capltsi grants and contribullons 1,036
credilad to the Comprehansive income and Expendilure

(1,035)

Statement
Adjustments invoiving the Penslons Reserve:

Reversal of items reiating to posl empioyment banafits 208
tebiled or credited to the Surpius or Deficit on the Pravision

of Sarvices in the Compreheansive income and Expenditure

Statement (sea nole 15)

(208}

Employer's penslons contribulions and direct payments lo 144
penslonsms payabie in the year

(144)

Adjustment Involving the Accumuiating Compsnsatad
Absences AdJusiment Account

Amount by which officer remuneralion charged to the {8}
Comgprehansive income and Expenditure Stalemsnt on an

accruais basis Is differant from remuneration chargeabie in

the year In accordanca with statutery requirements

Total Adjustments 1,851

(1,038)

(818)
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8, COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT - OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURE

2010M1 201112

' - Fessand Charges .
{2} (Gains}/ Losses on the disposai of nen current assats 86
(2) Totai £6

8. COMPREHENSIVE iNCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT - FINANGING AND iNVESTMENT iINCOME

AND EXPENDITURE
2010/11 201112
£000 ~ EooO

- Inferest payabié and similar charges -

63 Pansions interest cost and expectsd return on pensions assatls (49)
(13} interest recelvable and similar income (26)
{15} Changss in the fair value of invesimenl properties (12)

(9} Income & Expanditure on Investment propertias H(B)

26 Total (98)

7. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT - NON SPECIFIC GRANT INCOME

201011 2011H12
£000 ——— — ___ Egoo
{1.282)  Non-ing fanced govemment grants (1,540
(2,840)  Capital grants and contributions (12,781)
@122)  Total (14,331

8:: BALANCE SHEET - USABLE RESERVES

Movements in the Authority's usable resarves sre datailad in the Movement in Reserves Slatement and note 4.

8,. BALANCE SHEET - UNUSABLE RESERVES

31 March N March
2011 2012
£000 £000

711 Revajuation Reserve ' 714
49,719 Capital Adjustment Account 58,321
(1,747) Pansions Reserve _ 7 (2,072)

(10} Accumuiaﬂng Cmpansayig Absances Adjuglmanl Accqunt ' (12)
48,673 Total 4Un usable R_ese;vas _ 56,948
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Revajugtion Reserve

Tha Revalualion Reserve contains the gains mads by the Board ardsing from increasas in the vaiue of its Property,
Piant and Equipment. The balance Is reduced when assels with accumulated gains are:

* ra~valued downwards or impalred and the gains are lost
s used In the provision of servicas and the gaing are consumad through depreciation, or
»  disposed of and the gains are realisad

The Reserve contains only revaijuation gains accumuiated since 1 April 2007, the date that the Reserve was
crealed, Accumulaled gains arising before that date are consolidaled into the balance on the Capital Adjustmant
Account. .

2010/14 2011112
- £000 _ _ £000 ,
"~ 711 Balance at1 April T KT
- Upward ravalualion of assals - -
- Downward revaiualion of assets and impairmant losses - -
not charged to the Surplug/Deficit on the Provigion of
Services
~  Surpius or deficit on revaluation of non-current aseats B -
nosted to tha Comprehansive income and Expenditure
Stalement
- Difference betwean falr value depraclation and histosical - -
cost depreciation
- Accumuiated gaing on assels sold or scrapped - -
- Amount writlen off {o the Capitai Adjustment Account - -
711 Balance at 31 March 711
Capl un

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differsnces arsing from tha different amangements for
accounting for the censumption of non-current assets and for financing the aequisition, constiuction or
anhancement of thosa assels under siatulory provislons. The Account Is debiled with the cost of acqulsition,
construction or enhancement as dapreciation and impalmment josses are charged (o the Comprehansiva income
and Expanditure Statement. The Account |s credited with the amounts sel aside by the Board as finance for the
cosls of acquisiien, construction and enhancement. The Account conlains accumulated gains and iosses on
invasimeni Properties thal have yel lo be consumed by the Board. The Account also contains revaluation gaing
accumuiated on Property, Planl and Equipment before 1 Aprii 2007, the data thal the Revaiuation Reserve was
crealad to hold such gains. Note 4 provides detalls of the source of all-the transactions posted to the Account,
apart from those Involving the Revaiualion Reserve.
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201011 2011112
£000 — 000

43,339 Balanceatq Apr] 49,719

Reversal of ftems relating to capilal expenditure deblted or
credited o the Comprehensive Income and Expanditure

Statsment;

(1,442} » Charges for depreciation and impalment of non current {1,453}
assels

-« Ravajuation iosses on Properly, Piant and Equipment -

- = Amounts of non current assels written off on disposal or (69)

sale as part of the gainfloss on disposai {o the
Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statemenl

«  Adjusling amounts written out of the Revalualion Resarve -

(1442)  Net written ocut amount of the cost of non current assets (1,522)
consumed In the year

Capitai financing appilad In the year:

2  « Use of tha Capilal Recaipts Reserve 1o financa new capital 3
expenditure
1,806 » Caplial granis and contributions eredited to the 10,108

Comprehenslve Income and Expenditure Statement that
have baen applied to capilai financing

=« QCapilal expandilure changed against the Genaral Fund u
1,807 Total Capital Financing Applied during the year 10,112
15 Movemanis In the markel value of invesimenl Properiies 12

debiled or crediled to the Comprehensive Incoma and
Expenditura Statement

49,719 Baziance at 31 March 58,321

Benslons Reserve

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different amangements for accounting for
post employment benefits and for funding banefits In accordance with statulory provisions. The Board accounts for
post employment benafits in the Comprehsansive income and Expanditure Statement as the banefits are eamed by
amployeas accruing years of sarvice, updating tha ilabiiifies recognised to refiact inflation, changing assumptions
and investment relums on any resources sot aside {o maat the cosis. However, statutory amangamants require
benefits eamed lo be financed as the Board makes empioyer's contributions lo pensions funds or eventually pays
any pensions for which it Is direclly responsibia. Tha dabit balance on the Pansions Reserve thersfore shows a
substentlai shorifall in the benafits eamed by past and curent employees and the resources the Board has sel
aslds to mest them. The stalutory arangements wili ensure that funding wili have bean set aside by the time the
banefils come to be paid,

2010111 2011112
(2,793) BalanceaitAprit ~ (A4
604 Acluaniai g;{r;;_ or (losses) on pensions assels and liabilties {355}

T 288 Reversai of H;r:is refating to relirement benelits debiled or ;ré"diled o {116}

the Sumplus or Deficlt on the Provision of Services in the
Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement

ot o e sow et ———

144 Empioyer's penslons contributions and direct payments to 147
pensloners payable In the year _
{1,747} Balance at 31 March {2,072)
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Accumulating Compensated Absences Adlugiment Account

The Accumulaling Compensatad Absences Adjustment Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise
on the Ganeral Researve Balance from acecruing for compansated absences eamesd but not taken in the year.
Statulory armangemants requirg that {he impact on the General Reserve Balance s nautralisad by transfers o or

from tha Account.
2010711 2011712
£000 £000
{4} Balance at 1 Aprii ' (10)
4  Seillement or cancellation of aceruai made at the end of the 10 -
preceding year

(10}  Amounis accrued at the end of the curranl year (12) -

Amount by which offficer rsmuneration charged o the
(6) Comprehansive income and Expenditure Siatemant on an (2

accruals basis |s different from remunaration chargeable in the
year in accordance with statutary requiremenis

(10}  Baiance at 31 March {12)
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10.  CASH FLOW STATEMENT - INVESTING ACTIVITIES

2010111 204112
£000 | | i
2,030 Purchasa of property, plant and equipment, jnvastmant property 8349

and intangible asseis

- Purchass of short-lem and iong-lerm invasimenis -

- Other paymenis for Investing activilies -

(2} Procesads from the sale of praperty, plant and equipmant, {3}
investment properly and intangibia assels

- Procesads from shotf-tarm and long-lerm invesimenis -

(2,840) Other receipts from Investing activiies (12,781)

(812) Nat cash flows from Investing activiies {4,445)

11.  CASH FLOW STATEMENT - FINANCING ACTIVITIES

2010111 201112
g0OQ. ) S . Eo00

- Cash receipts of short and !ong-teﬁn bbrrowing -

(12)  Cther receipts from financing activitles (13}

- Cash payments for the reduction of the outstanding ifabillies -

relating to finance ieases and on~balance sheal PFi contracls

- Repayments of short and long-term borrowing .

- Dther payments for financing activitiss -

{(12)  Net cash flows from flnancing activities B {13}

12. CASH FLOW STATEMENT - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
The balance of Cash and Cash Equivalenls Is made up of the following sfements:

31 March 31 March
2011 2012
£000 e 000

- Cash haid by tha Board ' .
4,076  Bank cument account 870
4,076 Total cash and cash equivaients ) 8,71
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13. AMOUNTS REPORTED FCOR RESOURCE ALLOCATION DECISIONS
Declsions sbout rasource aliccallon are taken by the Board on the basls of budget reports analysed across
operationai divisions. These reports are prepared on & differsnl basls from the accounilng policles used In the
financial statements. in parlicuian;
« o chargaes sre made In relation o capital expenditure (whereas depreciation and Impaiment iosses) are
charged lo services in Lhe Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement)
« the cost of ralirement benefits |s based on cash flows (payment of employers pansions contribulions)
rather than current service cost of benefits accrued In the year
The Income and expenditure of the Board's operationai divisions recorded In the budget reports for the yearis as
follows:
Plant & Bridge
Divisional Income and Expanditure Admin  Operations Equipment Malntanance income Total
2011/2012 £000 £000 £008 EQ000 £000 £000
Feaes, charges & other service Income - - - - - -
interast and Investment Incomse - - - - (36} {36}
GQovemment granis - - - ~ (1,540 {1,540)
Total Income - - - - {1,878) {1,576)
Empioyas expenses 180 481 - 397 - 1,058
Other servica expanses 240 5 169 104 « 518
Total Expenditurs 420 488 169 501 - 1,876
Nat Expenditure 420 488 1869 501 {1,578) -
Piant & Bridge
Divislonat incoma and Expandlture Admin  Operations Equipment Maintenance income Total
2010/2011 £000 £ooe £000 £D0D £000C £000
Fees, charges & other sarvice income - - - - - -
interest and Investment incoma - - - - (23) {23)
Goveamment granis - - - - {1,282) {1,.282)
Totai Income - - - - (1.305) (1,305)
Empioyes expanses 177 468 - 406 - 1,051
Other gservice expenses 261 4 182 el - 546
Total Expenditure 438 472 182 508 - 1,597
Net Expendlture 438 472 182 505 (1.305) 292

Raconciliation of Divisionaf Income and Expenditure to Cost of Services in the Comprehansive Income and
Expenditure Statement

This reconcilialion shows how the figures in the analysis of divislonal income and expenditure reiate to the amounts
included in the Comprehenslve income and Expenditure Statement.

2010411 2412
£000 £000

Net expenditure in the Divisional Anaiysis 292 -
Net expenditure of services not incliuded in the Analysis - -
Amounts In the Comprehensive inceme and Expendiure Statement not

meponiad to managemeant in the Analysis 2,392 3196
Amounts inciuded In the Anaiysis not included In the Comprehensive income

and Expenditure Slatement (144} {147)
Cost of Services in Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 2,540 3,049
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Réconciiiation to Subleclive Analysis

This reconcillation shows how the figures in the analysls of divisional income and expenditura relate to a subjeclive
analysls of the Sumpius or Deficit on the Provision of Services includad In the Comprahensive Incoma and

Expenditure Statement,

20417212

Fees, charges & olher service income
interest and investment income
Govemment grants and contributions
Total Income

Employes expenses

Other sarvice expanses
Depreciation, amortisation and
Impairment

interest Payments
Gain or Loss on Disposai of Non-
Cutrent Assets

Total expenditure

Surplus or deficit on the provision
of sarvices

2010/2011

Fees, charges & other sarvice lncoma
interest and investmantincome
Govemment grants and contributions
Total Income

Employse expenses

Other service expenses

Depreciation,  amortisation and
impairment

intarest Payments

Gain or Loss on Disposai of Non-
Cument Assets

Total axpenditure

Surplus or deficit on the provision
of services

Amounts  Amounts
not not
CGperational reported  included Cost of Corporate

Divisions  tomgmt in CIES Saervices  Amounis Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
(36) - - (36) 6 (30}
(1,548) - - (1.540) {12,791} {14,331}
(1,576) . - {1,578)  (12,785) {14,381)
1,058 167 {147) 1,078 - 1,078
518 - - 518 - 18
- 1,453 - 1,453 - 1,453
1,576 1,620 (147) 3,049 - 3,049
- 1.620 {147) 1,473 {12,785) {11,312)

Amounts  Amounis
not not
Operational reported  included Cost of Corporata

Divisions tomgmt In CIES Sarvices Amounts Totai

£000 £000 £000 E0QD £000 £000
(23) - - (23) 47 24
{1,282) - - (1,282) (2,840) {4.122)
{1,306) - . (1,305) (2,793) (4,008)
1,064 199 (144) 1,108 - 1,106
546 {554} - (8 - (8)
- 1,442 - 1,442 . 1,442
1,597 1,087 (144) 2,540 - 2,540
252 1,087 {144} 1,238 (2,793) {1,558)

5|
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14.

15.

EXTERNAL AUDIT COSTS

The Board has Incurred the following costs In relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts, cenffication of
grant clalms and statutory Inspectlons and to olher non-sudit services provided by the Board's extemal auditors:

2011 201112

£000 £000
Faes payabie lo Audit Scoliand with regerd to external audk services 13 12
carried out by the appointad auditor for the year
Fees payable in respect of other servicas provided by the appointed - -
auditor during the year
Total 13 12

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEMES

Participation in pansion schemes

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of Its officers, the Boarnd makes contributions lowards the cost of
post employmant bensfils. Aithough these benefits will not actually be payable untli employees retira, the Board
has a commitment to make the payiments and this needs to be disciosed at the ime that employess eam thelr
future entitiement.

The Board parllcipates In two post employment schemas:

s Tha Local Govemmsent Penslon Scheme (Tayside Superannuation Fund), which is administerad locally by
Dundes City Councll and Is a funded defined benefit finai salary scheme, meaning that the Board and
employees pay contributions into a fund, calcuiated at a level infended to balance the pensions llabliilles with
invesiient assels.

s Amangements for the awerd of discretionary post rellrement benefits upon early retirement ~ this s an
unfunded defired benefit final arrangement, under which liabliiies are recognised when awards ace made.
Howsver, here are no Investmenl assels bullt up to meet the pensions flabilities, and cash has to be
generated to meet actual pansions payments as they aventually fali dua.

Transactions refating to post empioyment benefils

The Board recognises the cost of rellrement benefits in the reporied cost of servicas when they ane eamed by
empioyeas, rather ihan when lhe benefits are aventually paid as pensions. However, the charge the Board is
required to make against the cosl of service is based on the cash payable in the year, so tha real cost of post
emplioymentrelirement benefits is reversad out of the General Reserve via the Movement in Reserves Statement.
‘The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensiva income and Expenditu e Statement and the
Goenerai Reserve Baiance via the Movement in Reserves Statement during the year:

Locat Govermmment
Pension Scheme
£000

20102011 2011/2012

Comprehansive Income and Expanditure

Statement:

Cost of Services:
« cumrent service cost 193 165
» past service costs (554) -

Financing and Investment Income and Expendiiure
+ Interest cost 423 357
» expected retum on scheme assets (360) {406)
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Loeal Government
Pension Scheme
£000

2010/2011 201172012

Totai Post Employment Benefit Charged to the {298) 116
Surptus or Deficit on the Pravision of Services

Other Post Employment Benelit Charged fo the
Comprehensive Income and Expendiiure Stalerment

+ acluaral (gains} and losses (604) 355
Totai Post Employment Beneflt Charged to the {802) 471
Comprehensive Income and Expanditure
Statemant

Movemant in Reserves Statement:

« reversal of net charges mada to the Surplus 298 {116)
or Deficit for the Provision of Services for
post employment benefis in accordance with
the Code

Actual amount charged agualnst the Geners! Fund
Balance for pansfons [n the year;

« empioyers’ contributions payabie to scheme 144 147

« refiratment banefits payabie lo pensionars - -

Assets and liabllities in relation to post employment benefits

Reconcliiation of present vaiue of the scheme ilabilitles (definad beneflt cbligation):

Funded Habllitles: l.ocal Government
Pension Schema

£000
201042011 2011/2042

Opening baianca at 1 Apri 7.746 6,946
Cument service cost 193 165
interest cost 423 as7
Contributlons by schema 47 48
participants

Setllsments and curtaiiments - -
Acluarial gaing and losses {371} asg
Benafits pald (338) (240)
Past service cosls {554) -
Closing balance at 31 March 8,948 7,633

33



Reconcliiation of fair vaiue of the schame assels:

Loeal Governmant Pansion Scheme

£0006
201012011 2011/2012
Cpening balance at 1 Aprii 4,953 5,198
Expactad rate of retum 360 406
Actuariai gains and {losses) 30 3
Setllements - -
Employsr contributions 147 147
Contribulione by schema participants A7 46
Benefits pakl {338) (240
Closing balance at 31 March 5199 5,561

The expectad relum on scheme assels is delemmined by considering lhe expecled relums avallabie on the assets
underlying the current Investment policy, Expecied yields on fixed interest investments are based on g uss redemplion
yleids as at the Baiance Shest date. Expecied returns on equity Investments reflect long-term reai rates of retum
axperenced in the respective markets.

The actual relum on scheme assats in the year was £23,000 (2010/11: £389,000),

Scheme history:
2007/08 200809 2009110 2010/11 2011112
£00¢ £00O £4000 £000 £000
Prasant valus of fiabililles (5,540) {5,191) {7.746) {6,246) {7,833)
Fair vaiue of assets In the Locai 4219 3,750 4,953 5,199 5,561
Govemment Pension Scheme
Surpius/({deficit) in the scheme {1,321) {1,441) (2,793) {1,747) (2,072)

The liabliiles show the underiying commliments that the Board has in the long run ta pay post employment {retiremant)
benefis, The lolal liablilty of £2.072m ig reflacted in the Board's Balance Sheel. However, statutory amangemaents fer
funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the Board remalns heeithy. The deflcit on the incal govemment
schame wiil be made good by increassd contributions over the ramaining working life of smployess {l.e., before paymenis
faii dua), as assessad by tha scheme actuary.

The total contributions expacted to ba made to the Local Govemment Pension Scheme by the Board in the yearto 31
March 2013 Is £135,000,

Basis for estimating assats and liabliities
Liabiiities have baen assessad on an actuariai basls using the projected unlt method, an estimate of the pensions that will
bs payable in future years dependent on assumplions about mordafity reles, salary ievels, elc. The Tayside

Superannuation Fund has been assessed by Bamett Waddingham, an independent firm of actuaiies, belng bassd on Lhe
jatast fuli valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2011,
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The principal assumptions used by the acluary have besn:
Local Government
Pension Schems
2010/41  2011M2
Long-term expeclad rats of ratum on assels in the schomsa:

Equity investments 82% 7.1%
Giits 4:4% 3.3%
Bonds 5.5% 4.6%
Property 5.4% 4.3%
Cash 3.0% 3.0%
Mortailty assumplions:
Longevity at 65 for current pensioners (years):
Men 214 20.6
Women 24.4 228

Longevity at 65 for future pansloners (years):

Men 223 21,8

Women 253 24.4
Rate of inflalion {RP{) 3.5% 3.3%
Rate of infiation (CPI} 27% 2.5%
Rats of Increase in salares 5.0% 4.8%
Rate of Increase in pensions 2.7% 2.5%
Rate for discounting schame liabiiiies 5.5% 4.6%
Take-up of oplion lo converl annuai penslon into ralirement 50% 50%

fump sum

Tha Tayside Superannuallon Fund's assats consist of the faliowing categories, by proportion of the {otal agsets held:

3 March 2041 31 March 2012

% %
Equity Invesiments 72 68
Gilts 7 8
Other Bonds 10 1
Propertly 9 11
Cash 2 2
Total 100 100
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History of experlence gains and ossas

The actuariai galns identified as movements on the Pensions Reserve In 2011/12 can be analysed into the foliowing
categories, measured as a percentage of assets or fiablliles at 31 March 2012;

16.

17.

2007/08 2008/0%  2009/10 201011 2M1A2

% % Yo % %
Diffarances between the expected and actuai retumn {12.2) {19.7) 212 0.6 0.1
on assets
Experience galns and iossas on ilabliities 0.0 (1.9) 0.2 0.0 6.9

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Thers were no events that occurred between 1 April 2012 and 8 June 2012 that would have an impact on the
2011/2042 financial statements. The latter date Is the date on which the audited accounts weare authorised for
issue by the Treasurer,

RELATED PARTIES

The Board Is raquirad io disciose mataral ransatlions with related parlies — bodias or Individuals that have the
potential to control or influanca the Board or 1o be controlied or influenced by the Board. Disclosure of these
transactions ailows readers to assess the extant to which the Board might have been constrainad in its abliity to
oporate independantiy or might have sacurad the ability to iimit another parly’s abiiity to bargaln freely with the
Board.

Central Govemment

Cantral govemment has effeclive controi over the generai operations of the Board. 1 is responsible for providing
the statutory framewark within which the Board operates, pravides the majority of its funding In the form of grants
and prascribas the larms of many of the transaclions that the Board has with other parlies. Grants received from
govemment departiments are sat out in the subjective analysls in note 13 on amounts reported to decision makars.
There are no grant recelpts outstanding at 31 March 2012 {sen note 25).

Gther Local Authorilies
Angus, Bundee City and Fife Counclis ara considered to ba reiated pariles of the Board. During 201172012, the
Board entered into a number of transactions with Bundea City and Fife Counciis, as detaiied balow:

2040/2011 2010/2014
income  Expenditurs Income  Expsnditure
£000 £000 £000 £006
Dundee City Council:
(13) - interast Receivabie (26) -
- 59 Central Support Services - 58
- - Miscellaneous - 30
- Grounds Malntenance - -
(13) 61 Totat {26) 88
Fife Councli:
- 10 Grounds Maintenance - -
- 10 Total - -
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The following batances existed batween the Board and Dundes Cily and Fife Counciis as at 31 March 2012

2010/2011 2011/2012
Assat Liabiilty Agset Lizbility
£000 £000 E£0O0 £000
Dundea City Couneil:
- 17 Central Support Services - 36
(13) - Interest Receivable {26) -
- 24 Miscelizneous - 13
{13) 41 Totai {25} 49
Fife Council:
- - Grounds Maintenance - -
- - Total - -
LEASES
Ihe Board aslessee

The Board held no assets on finance or operaling iease during 2011/2012 and, accordingly, thera were no lease
renitais paid to lessors durlng the year {2010/2011 None) or commitments due to lessors In 2011/2012 (2010/2011
None).

The Bpard as Lassor

The Board has entered a three year agreement for the lsase of iand and property io a third party, This agreament
Is accounted for as an operating isase. in 2014/2012 the Board recelved rent of £10,213 from this agreement
(2010/2011 £10,213). The present value of minfmum lease payments recelvable as at the Balance Shest date zre
as follows:

a) Not Iater than 1 year= £10,213

b) later than 1 year and not laterthan & years = £20,426

c) iater than 5 years = £Nii.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The followlng ftems of Income and expense have been accounted for in the Comprehsnsiva Income and
Expanditure Statament:

2010/41 201112
£000 £000
Rental incoms from inveetment property 10 10
Direct operaling expenses arising from investment (1) (1)
property
Nat galn/{i oss) 9 8

There are no rastrictions on the Board's abillty to realise the vaiue Inherent in its invesiment property or on the
Board's rght to the remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal.
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20,

The following table summarises the movement In the falr vaiue of invesiment properiies over the year:

2040111 2010111
£000 £000
Balance at start of the year 58 73
Additions:
Purchases - -
Subsequent expanditura - -
Dispogals - -
Net gains/({losses) from fair value adjusiments 15 12
Transfers:
toffrom inveniories - -
tofrom Property, Piant and Equipment - -
Balance at end of the year 73 85
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Movements on Balances
Movaments in 2011/12:
Total
Other Land  Vehicles, Property,
and Piant & Infrastructure Piant &
Bulldings Equip Assots Equipment
£000 £000 © £000 £000
Cost or Valuation
At 1 April 2011 1,244 738 56,389 58,372
Additions - 14 6,107 5121
Derecognition — Disposals - - {149) {149}
Derecognition ~ Other - - {80) (a0)
Cther movements In Cost or Vaiualjnn - - 3,991 3,501
At31 March 2012 o 1,244 753 66,258 68,255
Accumulated Depraciation and
impairment
Al 1 April 2011 14 248 7,801 8,063
Depreclation charge 14 50 1,308 1,372
Derecognition ~ Disposals - - {80} {80)
At31March 2012 28 298 9,029 9,385
Net Book Value
At 31 March 2012 1,218 455 57,229 52,900
At 31 March 2011 1,230 492 48,588 )
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Comparative Movements in 2010/11:

Total
Other Land Vehicles, Property,
and Plant & infrastructure Plant &
Bulidings Equipment Asseats Equipment
o 000 i P
Cost or Valuation o
At1 Apnil 2010 1,244 618 54,849 58,711
Additions - 167 1,650 1,807
Derecognition — Disposals - (36) - {36)
Derecognition - Other _ - - {110) _ (110)
At 31 March 2011 1,244 739 58,389 58,372
Accurnulated Depreciation and
Impairment
At1 April 2010 - 241 6,525 6,766
Depreciation charge 14 43 1,276 1,333
Darecognition — Disposals - - (36) - {38)
At 31 March 2011 14 248 7,801 8,063
Net Book Vatue
At 31 March 2011 1,230 492 48,588 50,310
At 31 March 2010 1,244 are 48,324 49,944
Capital Commitments

Al 31 March 2012, tha Board has enterad Inlo & numbar of contracts for the construclion or enhancemant of
Property, Plant and Equipment in 2012/13 and fulure years, budgeted to cost £42,059,000, (Simiar commitments
at 31 March 2011 were £484,000). The major commiment is for:

«  Pler Collision Protection Warks - £42,0608,000

Revajualfons

The Authorily carries out a rolling programme that ensures that all Property, Plant and Equipment required to be
measured at falr vaius I3 revelued at ieast every five years. All veiuatlons were camied out by Mr Douglas
Davidson BSc MRICS, from Dundee City Councl's City Deveiopment Department. Vaiuations of land and
bulidings were canmied out in accordance with the methodoiogles and bases for estimation set out in the
professional slandards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.
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21. CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND CAFITAL FINANCING

The total amount of capital expendliure Incurad in the year Is shown In the table below, together wilh the resources
that have bean usad to financs it

2010111 201112

£000 £000
Capliai investment:
Proparty, Plant and Equipment 1,807 8,122
Investmaent Properties - -
Total Capital investment 1,807 8,122
Sources of finance:
Capfial recelpls 2 3
Gavemment grants and other contributions 1,805 6,119
Capitat Financed from Revenue - -
Total Sources of Finance 1,807 8,122
22. INVENTORIES
Censumable Maintenance Client Services Property Total
Stores Materials Work In Progress  Actjuired or
Constructad
for Sale

10111 1112 10/44 1112 1011 12 1011 11H2 10011 M2
£060 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000  £000  £0GO

Balance outstanding - - 52 47 - - - - 52 47
at start of year

Purchases

Recognisad as an
axpense In the year - - {2) M - - - - (2) {1

Wiitten off balances -

Reversals of write-offs -
n previous years

- Other Adjustments - - {3) 1 - - - - (3) 1

Balance ou'ts-'l-andlng - - 47 47 - - - - 47 47
at year-and

23. SHORT-TERM DEBTORS

31 March 2014 31 March 2012

£000 £000
Central govemment bodles - ) o
"Locat authorities B 12 O 26
'NHS bodies ' - -
Ml;ugﬁccorporauon; a_n_& trading funds o ——_: _ -
Otver onttes and Ididuals I
Totai ' S 20 35

[ )
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SHORT-TERM CREDITORS
31 March 2041 31 March 2012
£000 £000

Central govemment bodles - 161
Local suthorities 41 127
NHS badies - -
Public corporations and irading funds 9 -
Olher entitfes and ndividuals 356 2,079
Total 406 2,387

GRANT INCOME

The Board credited the foliowing granls, confributions and donations to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Accaount n 2011/12:

2010/11 201112
£000 £000
Cradited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income
Scottlsh Govemment Revenue Grant 1,282 1,640 o
Scoltish Govemnment Capilat Grant 2,840 8,800
Dundee Clty Councii Capltal Grant - 3,091
Total - 4,122 14,331

The Board has £160,000 of Revenus grants, contributions and donaflons that have yet to ba recognised as Income
due to them having conditlons atlached to them that requires (he menies or properly to be retumed to the grant
provider (2010/2011 None).
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD -
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
Scope of Reaponsibiilty

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board is responsibie for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the
law and appropriate standards. This Is to ensure that public funds and assets at its disposal are safeguarded,
properiy accounted for and used economically, efficiently, effectively, and ethically. The Board also has a duty
to make arrangements to secure continuous Improvement in the way its functions are carried out.

in discharging these responsibliities elected members and senior officers are responsible for implementing
effective arrangements for governing the Board's affairs and facliitating the effective exerclse of Its functions,
Inciuding arrangements for the management of risk.

To this end the Board has approved and adopted a local Code of Corporate Governance that is consistent
with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE framework Deliver/ng Good Governance /n Local Govermnment. This
statement explains how Tay Road Bridge Joint Board delivers good governance and revisws the effectiveness
of thesa arrangements.

The Board's Governance Framework

The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, cultures and values by which the Board Is
directed and cantroiied. it aiso describes the way It engages with and accounts to stakehoiders. It enabies
the Board to monlior the achievement of its strategic objectives and consider whether those objectives have
jed o the dellvery of appropriate, cost-effactive sarvices.

The framework reflects the arrangements In place to meet the six supporting principles of effective corporate
govemnance, These are as foilows:

¢ focusing on the purpose of the Board and on outcomes for the community and creating and
impiementing a vision for the locai area;

« members and officers working together to achleve a common purpose with clearly defined functions
and roles;

« promoting values for the Board and demonstrating the vaiues of good governance through uphoiding
high standards of conduct and behaviour;
taking Informed and transparent declslons which are subject to effective scrutiny and managing risk;
developing the capacity and capabiiities of members and officers to be effective; and
engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public accountabliity.

Within the overali control arrangements the system of Internal financial control is intended to ensure that
assets are safequarded, transactions are authorised and propery recorded, and materiai errors or
irregularities are efther prevented or would be detected within a timely perlod. itis based on a framework of
regular management information, financial reguiations, administrative procedures and management
supervision.

The overall control arangements include:

Identifying the Board's objectives in the Service Pian;

monitoring of objectives by the Board and senior officers;

reporting performance regularly to Board meetings;

clearly defined Standing Orders and Schemes of Administration covering Financial Regufations,

Tender Procedures and Delegation of Powers;

e approved Fraud Guideilnes which inciude anti-fraud and corruption strategles, and "whistie-blowing”
amangamants;
setting targets to measure financial and service performance; and

» formal revenue and capital budgetary control systems and procedures,

. 80

Additionally, in order to support Chief Financial Officers in the fulfiment of their duties and to ensure that iocal
authority organisations have access to effective financial advice of the highest ievel, CIPFA's Role of the Chief
Financial Officer has Introduced a "comply or explaln” requirement in the Annuai Statement of Accounts.
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Review of Effectiveness

Members and officers of the Board are committed to the concept of sound governance and the effec ive
delivery of Board services and take into account comments made by internal and externat auditors.

In additlon the Board have made a seif-assessment of thelr own arrangements. This involved the compietion,
by the Bridge Manager, of a 56-point checkilst covering the six supporting principies defined In
CIPFA/SOLACE's Delivaring Good Governance in Local Government. This indicated a high level of
compliance,

The Board's Internal Audit Service operates in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice for internal Audit
In Locai Government in the United Kingdom and reports to the Board. internal Audil undertakes an annual
programme of wark, which Is reported to the Board. The internal Auditor provides an Independent opinion on
the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of internal control.

The Treasurer compiles with tha princiDTes sel out In CIPFA's Rofa of the Chief Financial Officer.
Continuous Improvement Agenda

The following areas were identified by the Bridge Manager in the self-assessment checkiists completed as
part of the Board’s assurance gathering process where further improvement could be made:

* Develop a formai complalnts procedure.

During 2011/2012, [nternal Audit conducted a revlew of the Corporate Governance and Planning
arrangements in place at the Board. This identified the following areas where further improvements could be
made:

+ Update the current Code of Corporate Governance to Include a section which identifies the key
partnarships and relationships that the Board has with other bodies;

s Update the current Code of Corporate Governance 1o reflect changes made since the introduction of
the Busliness Continulty Pian and changes in both external and Internal auditors; and

« Develop a formal complaints procedure (taking account of updated guldance still to be issued by the
Scottish Ombudsman's Office).

It Is proposed over 2012/13 steps are taken to address the items identifled in the Continuous Improvement
Agenda to further enhance the Board’s governancs arrangements.

The annuai review demonstrales sufficient evidence that the code’s principles of delivering good govemnance

in focal government operated effectively and the Board complies with tha Local Code of Corporate
Governance |n ali slgnificant respects.

Marjory Stewart FCCA, CPFA lain MacKinnon

Treasurer Bridgs Manager

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board Tay Road Bridge Joint Board
8 June 2012 8 June 2012

43

69



70

TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
ANNUAL REMUNERATION REFORT
INTRODUCTION

The Board Is required to prepare and publish within its Statement of Accounts an annual Remuneration
Report under the Local Authority Accounts (Scotiand} Amendmeant Regulations 2011 (Scotlish Statutory
instrument No. 2011/84), which came Into force on 31 March 2011, The report sets out the remuneration and
accrued pension benefits of the Senior Employees of the Board. The report also provides information an the
number of Board employees (including Senior Employees) whose total actuzl remuneration was £50,000 or
mare, this information being disclosed in salary bandings of £5,000 above £50,000. No Counciilors recelve
remunaration from the Board. The following report has been prepared in accordance with the aforementloned
Regulations and also in accordance with the non-statutory guidance set out in Scottish Government Finance
Circular 82011, issued on 13 May 2011.

The Board's Externai Auditor Is required to audit certain parts of the Remuneration Report and give a separate
opinion In his report on the Statement of Accounts as to whether the Remuneration Report has been propery
preparad In accordance with the Regulations. Tables 1 and 2 are subject o audit, and the remalnder of the
report |s subject to review.

REMUNERATION ARRANGEMENTS

Senior Board Members

The Chalrman and Vice-Chairman do not recelve any remunaration (2010/2011: Nii remunera lon).
Senior Empioyeses

The salary of Senlor Employees is set by reference to national agreements. The salaries of senior empioyees
of the Board take into account the duties and responsibilities of their posts. The Board Is responsible for
agreaing the salaries of senior employees. All Board employees are entitled to participate in Dundee City
Councl's Contract Car Hire Scheme, subject to mesting certaln criteria. The Councli's Policy & Resources
Committee s aiso responsible for agreeing the terms of the Contract Car Hire Scheme.

For the purposes of the Remuneration Repat, the Reguiations set out the following crileria for designation as
a Senior Empioyee of the Board:

)] has responsibliity for management of the Board to the extent that the parson has power to direct or
controi the major activitios of the Board (inciuding activities involving the expenditure of money),
during the year to which the Report relates, whether solely or collectively with other persons;

{m holds a post that Is politically restricted by reason of saction 2(1)(a), (b) or () of the Local
Governmenl and Housing Act 1989; or

{ilh) annual remuneration, including any remuneration from a local authority subsidiary body, Is £150,000
o more.

The Board has determined that one employee met the criteria for designation as a Sanlor Empioyes in
2011/2012, with the employes falling into category (I) above. The remuneration details for the Senior
Empioyees of the Board are set out in Table 1.

The Regulations aiso require Information to be published on the tolal number of Board empioyees (including
Senior Empioyees) whose total actuai remunaration was £50,000 or more. This informatlon is to be disciosed
In salary bandings of £5,000 above £50,000 and is shown in the following table.

No of No of
Remuneratjon Bands Employees Employeces
2011/2012 2010/2011
£50,000 - £54,999 - -
£55,000 - £59,895 i 1
Total 1




EXIT PACKAGES
There were no exit packages agreed during 2011/2012 (2010/2011: No exit packages agreed).
ACCRUED PENSION BENEFITS

Pension benefits for Local Government Empioyeses are provided through the Locai Government Penslon
Scheme (LGPS). local Government Employees pension benefits are a final salary pension scheme. This
means that pension benefits are based on the final year's pay and the number years that the person has been
a member of the scheme. The scheme's normal retirement age for Local Govemment Employees is 65.

From 1 April 2008 a five tler contribution system was introduced with contributions from scheme members
being based on how much pay falis into each tier. This Is designed to give more equallty between the cost
and benefits of scheme membership. Prior to 2008, contribution rates were set at 8% for aii non-manual
empioyees. The tiers and members contribution rates for 2011/2012 remain at the 2069/2010 rates and are
as foliows:

"~ Contribution Contribution

Whoie Tima Pay Rate 2011/2012 Rats 2010/2011
On earnings up to and including £18,000 5.5% 9.5%
On earnings above £18,000 and up to £22,000 7.25% 7.25%
On earnings above £22,000 and up to £30,000 8.5% 8.5%
' On earnings above £30,000 and up to £40,000 9.5% 9.5%
On earnings above £40,000 12% 12%

if a person works part-time their cantribution rate Is worked out on the whole-time pay rate for the job, with
actuai contributions pald on aciual pay earned.

Thare is no automatic entitiement to a lump sum. Members may opt to give up (commute) pension for lump
sum up to the limit set by the Finance Act 2004, The accrual rate guarantees a pension based on 1/60™ of
final pensionable sala[hy and years of pensionable service. Prlor to 2009 the accrual rate guaranteed a
pension based on 1/80" and a lump sum based on 3/80™ of final pensionable salary and years of pensionabie
service.

Sanlor Employees
The accrued pension benefits for Senior Employees are set out in Table 2, together with the pension
contributions made by the Board.

Assumptions and Contextuai information

The value of the accrued pension benefits has been calculated on the basis of the age at which the parson wilt
first become entitled to receive a pension on retirement without reduction on account of Its payment at that
age; without exercising any option lo commule pension entitiement into a jump sum; and without any
adjustment for the effects of future inflation. The pension figures shown raiate to the benafits that tha person
has accrued as a consequence of thelr tolal Local Government service and not just their current appointment.

in considering the accrued pension benefits figures the following contextual information should be taken into
account:

{i the figures for penslon and lump sum are lliustrative only in light of the assumptions set out above and
do not necessarily reflect the actual benefits that any individual may recelve upon retirement,

{ii) the accrued benefits figures are reflective of the pension contributions that bath the employer and the
scheme member have made over a period of time. In 2011/2012, the scheme member contribution
rate for Senlor Employees of the Board was 8.6% of pensionable pay. In 2011/2012, the employer
contribulion rate was 18.5% of pensionabie pay for Senior Empioyess.

MW, Breset

Marjory M Stewart, FCCA, CPFA
Treasurer

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board

8 June 2012
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INGEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Statement of Accounts set out on pages 10 to 42 are subject to audit in accordance with the requirements
of Part Vil of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

The Auditor appointed for this purpose by the Accounts Commission for Scotland Is:

Stephen Reid
Engagement Director
Fublic Sector Audit
KPMG LLP

191 West George Strest
Glasgow

G221

A7
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REPORT TO: TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD - 18 JUNE 2012

REPORT ON: EXTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 2011/2012

REPORTBY: TREASURER

REPORT NO: TRB 11-2012

4.1

4.2

4.3

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To present to the Board the External Audit Annual Audit Plan, attached as an Appendix
to this report.

RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that the Board notes the content of the External Audit Annual Audit Plan
for 2011/12.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The cost of External Audit Services is included in the approved 2012/2013 Revenue
Budget.

MAIN TEXT

Introduction

The external audit of the Board for the financial year 2011/12 will be carried out by Mr
Stephen Reid, Engagement Director, KPMG. The Joint Board's External Auditors are
appointed for a five year period and the financial year 2011/12 marks the first year of
KPMG's appointment to the Board.

External Auditor's Annual Audit Plan

The External Auditor's annual audit plan summarises the key challenges and risks facing

the Board and sets out the proposed audit work to be undertaken in 2011/12. The plan

reflects;

s the risks and priorities facing the Board

* current national risks relevant to local circumstances

« the impact of changing international auditing and accounting standards

« External Audit's responsibilities under the Code of Practice as approved by the
Auditor General and the Accounts Commission

¢ issues brought forward from previous audit reports.

External Auditor's responsibilities

External Audit's responsibilities as independent auditor, are established by the Local
Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and the Code of Audit Practice, and guided by the
auditing profession's ethical guidance,

In carrying out their audit, External Audit seek to gain assurance that the Board:

» has good corporate governance arrangements in place which reflect the three
fundamental principles of openness, integrity and accountability

TRB11-2012 -~ ExtAudPlan 1112 - 180612
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4.5

« has systems of recording and processing transactions which provide a sound basis
for the preparation of financial statements and the effective management of its assets
and interests

« prepares financial statements which give a true and fair view of the financial position
at 31 March 2012 and the income and expenditure for the year then ended, in
accordance with the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and other applicable
laws and regulations, including the 2011/12 Accounting Code of Practice

« has systems of internal control which provide an adequate means of preventing or
detecting material misstatement, error, fraud or corruption

« complies with established policies, procedures, laws and regulations

« has made proper arrangements for securing best value in its use of resources.

Reporting Arrangements

Under the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1873, there is a requirement for unaudited
financial statements to be presented to the Board and the Controller of Audit within 3
months of the financial year end i.e. 30th June. The non-statutory target for audit
completion is 30th September.

The External Auditor provides an independent auditor's report to the Board and the
Accounts Commission that the audit of the financial statements has been completed in
accordance with applicable statutory requirements, including an opinion on those
financial statements. An annual report to members and the Controller of Audit will also
be produced to summarise all significant matters arising from the audit. This wili be
presented to the Board at the meeting in December 2012.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

This report has been screened for any policy implications in respect of Sustainability,
Strategic Environmental Assessment, Anti-Poverty, Equality Impact Assessment and
Risk Management. There are no major issues identified.

CONSULTATIONS

The Bridge Manager and the Clerk to the Board have been consulted on the content of
this report.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

MARJORY M STEWART
TREASURER 7 JUNE 2012

TRB11-2012 ~ ExthudPlan 1112 - 180612
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1. Infroduction HENDERSON LOGGIE

1.1

1.2

1.3

The purpose of this document is to present to the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board ('the Board’)
the annual internal audit operating plan for the financial vear ended 31 March 2012. The plan
is based on the proposed allocation of audit days for 2011/12 set out in the Audit Needs
Assessment and Strategic Plan 2010 to 2013, The preparation of the Strategic Plan involved
dialogue with the Bridge Manager and with the Treasurer.

At Section 3 of this report we have set out the outline scope and objectives for each audit
assignment for 2011/12, together with the audit approach. These were arrived at foliowing
consuitation with the Bridge Manager.

Separate reports will be issued for each assignment unless otherwise stipulated. This year
the Corporate Governance and Corporate Planning reviews will be carried out together and
our findings will be included in one report. Recommendations are graded in each report to
reflect the significance of the issues raised.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board Annual Plan 201112



2. Strategic Plan 2010 to 2013 HENDERSON LOGGIE

Proposed Allocation of Audit Days

Actual Planned Planned
10/%1 1112 1213
Days Days Days

Reputation
Health and Safety 3

Staffing Issues
Recruitment and retention / HR policies 6
Payroli 3

Estates and Facilities

Physical Security }
Asset management J 8
Delivery of major projects 7

Financial Issues
Budget setting / budgetary control 5
General ledger
Pracurement and creditors / purchasing 3
Debtors / income

Cash & bank / Treasury managemert

(]

Organisational Issues
Risk management / Business continuity 7
Corporate governance)* 6
Corporate planning)* 4
Insurance arrangements

Information and T
IT network arrangements 8
Data protection / FOI 4

Other Audit Activities
Management and Planning ) 3 4 4
External audit )
Attendance at audit committees )
Follow-up reviews

ANA 5

—_
AN
N

Total 28 30 30

*These projects will be linked and only one report produced

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board Annual Plan 2011112 2
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3. Outline Scope and Objectives HENDERSON LLOGGIE

Audit Assignment: Employment Legistation and Policies, Recruitment, and
Staff Performance and Development

Priority: Medium / Low
Joint Board Meeting: June 2012
Days: 6

Scope

The review will inciude review of employment legislation and policies, recruitment processes, and
actions to retain and improve Board staff.

Objectives

The objective of our audit will be to obtain reasonable assurance that:

. there is a process to identify changes in employment legislation and make changes on a timely
basis;

. employment policies in place cover all appropriate areas and are considered adequate;

. staff have access to employment policies and are aware of their requirements;

. procedures are in place to ensure that policies are equalities impact assessed to ensure they
meet the requirements of the Equalities Act 2010;

. the recruitment process is efficient and effective and adheres to the requirements regarding
equality;

. the Board has a systematic approach to setling targets for staff, regularly assessing
performance and development of staff and providing feedback; and

. training, including induction training, is clearly informed by an assessment of where staff have

skills f knowledge / performance gaps.

Qur audit approach will be:

From discussion with appropriate staff and review of procedural documentation, we will identify the
internal controls in place and compare these with expected controls. A walkthrough of key
recruitment, performance and fraining systems will then be undertaken to confirm our understanding
and this will be followed up with compliance testing where considered necessary. We will report on
any areas where expected controls are found to be absent or where controls could be further
strengthened. We will also compare the employment policies that the Board has against what is
considered good practice and identify if there are any further policies that should be develaped.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Beard Annual Plan 2011/12 3



3. Outline Scope and Objectives HENDERSON LOGGIE
Audit Assignment: Corporate Governance and Planning

Priority: Medium / Low

Joint Board Meeting: June 2012

Days: 10

Scope

Corporate governance is ‘the combination of processes and structures implemented by the governing
bady in order to inform, direct, manage and monitor the activifies of the organisation toward the
achievement of its objectives’ (Cadbury Report, 1992). These processes include planning.

in 2004 the Independent Commission for Good Governance in Public Services was established by the
Office for Public Management. The Commission’s objective was to identify a common code for public
service governance, thereby providing guidance for all public service organisations and partnerships.
The resulting report, The Good Governance Standard for Public Services, was published in January
2005. Building on the Nolan principles for the conduct of individuals in public life it set out six core
principles for good governance:

. Good governance means focusing on the organisation’s purpose and on outcomes for citizens
and service users;

. Good governance means performing effectively in clearly defined functions and roles;

. Goad governance means promoting values for the whole organisation and demonstrating the
values of good governance through behaviour;

. Good governance means taking Informed, fransparent decisions and managing risk;

. Good governance means developing the capacity and capability of the governing body to be

effective; and
. Good governance means engaging stakeholders and making accountability real.

This audit will be a high-level review of the corporate governance and planning arrangements in place
within the Board. The scope will also include planning processes in place at the Board.

Objectives

The objective will be to review compliance with good practice in corporate governance as defined in
The Good Govermnance Standard for Public Services. The overall objective for planning will be fo
obtain reasonable assurance that the Board's planning processes are adequate and effective and
accord with good practice.

Our audit approach will be:

For Corporate Governance the control environment in place at the Board will be reviewed and
benchmarked against current best practice using The Good Governance Standard for Public Services
as a guide. From discussion with management we will document the planning processes that the
Board has in place. We will undertake this through review of specific plans, policies, minutes, other
documents and discussion with key staff, to ensure that they cover all aspects currently recommended
by best practice. We may use a good practice template as a method of assessing these planning
processes.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board Annual Plan 2011/12 A
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3. Outline Scope and Objectives HENDERSON LOGGIE

Audit Assignment: IT Network Arrangements
Priority: Medium

Joint Board Meeting: June 2012

Days: 8

Scope

The scope of the audit will be to carry out a high-level review of certain key aspects of the IT systems
in place within the Board to identify any control weaknesses.

Chjective

The objective will be to obtain reasonable assurance that internal controls in place ensure the security
of the IT network operated by the Board.

Our audit approach will be:

Our approach will be based upon the internal Control Questionnaires (ICQs) provided by the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA); guidance provided by the Control
Objectives for Information and related Technology (COBIT) standard issuad by the IT Governance
Institute (ITGI); discussion with staff: review of relevant documentation; and observation, covering the
following areas:

. Physical and environmental controls;

. Network infrastructure;

. Acceptable Use Policy;

. Logical access; and

. Compliance with user licence requirements.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board Annual Plan 2011/12 5



3. Outline Scope and Objectives HENDERSON LOGGIE
Audit Assignment: Follow-Up Reviews

Priority: Various

Joint Board Meeting: June 2012

Days; 2

Scope

As part of the internal audit programme at the Board for 2011/12 we will review the recommendations
raised within internal audit reports issued in 2010711 and obtain an update on these. Areas covered
during 2010/11 were;

. Report 2011/03 — Health and Safety

. Report 2011/04 ~ Payroll

. Report 2011/05 — General Ledger

. Report 2011/06 — Procurement and Creditors / Purchasing

. Report 2011/07 - Risk Management, Business Continuity and Insurance
. Report 2011/08 - Follow-Up Reviews

Qbjective

The objective of our follow-up review will be to assess whether recommendations made in internal
audit reports fram 2010/11 have been appropriately implemented and to ensure that, where little or no
progress has been made towards implementation, that plans are in place to progress them.

Qur audit approach will be:

to request from responsible officers for each report listed above an update on the status of
implementation of the recommendations made;

to ascertain by review of supporting documentation, for any significant recommendations within
the reports listed above, whether action undertaken has been adequate; and

prepare a summary of the current status of the recommendations for the Board,

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board Annuai Plan 201912 8
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1. Management Summary HENDERSON LOGGIE

Introduction

As part of the Internal Audit programme at the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board (‘the Board’) for
2011/12 we carried out a review of employment legislation and policies, recruitment
processes, and actions to retain and improve Board staff. Our Audit Needs Assessment
identified this as an area where risk can arise and where Internal Audit can assist in providing
assurances to the Board and management that the related control environment is operating
effectively, ensuring risk is maintained at an acceptable level.

Scope of the Audit

The audit included a review of employment legislation and policies, recruitment processes,
and actions to retain and improve Board staff.

Objectives of the Audit

The objectives of our audit were to obtain reasonable assurance that:

» there is a process to identify changes in employment legislation and make changes on a
timely basis;

+ employment policies in place cover all appropriate areas and are considered adequate;

« staff have access to employment policies and are aware of their requirements;

« procedures are in place to ensure that policies are equalities impact assessed fo ensure
they meet the requirements of the Equalities Act 2010;

e the recruitment process is efficient and effective and adheres to the requirements
regarding equality;

« the Board has a systemaiic approach to setting targets for staff, regularly assessing
performance and development of staff and providing feedback; and

« training, including induction training, is clearly informed by an assessment of where staff
have skills/ knowledge/performance gaps.

Audit Approach

From discussions with appropriate staff and review of procedural documentation, we identified
the internal controls in place and compared them with expected controls. A walkthrough of
key recruitment, performance and training systems was undertaken to confirm our
understanding and this was followed up with compliance testing where considered necessary.

We reported on any areas where expected controls were found to be absent or where controls
could be further strengthened. We also compared the employment policies that the Board has
against what is considered good practice and identified if there were any further policies that
shoutd be developed.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board — Employment Legislation and Policies, Recruitment and Staff Performance 1
& Development
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1. Management Summary HENDERSON LOGGIE

Action Plan

This report sets out eight improvement actions, which we consider necessary to ensure
efficient delivery of each objective and these are discussed within the text for clarity. An
action plan for implementation of these recommendations can be found at Section 2 of this
report.

To aid the use of the action plan, our recommendations have been graded to denote the level
of importance that should be given to each one. These gradings are as follows:

A lssues which require the consideration of the Board.
B Significant matters which the Bridge Manager can resolve.
C Less significant matters, which do not require urgent attention but which should be

followed up within a reasonable fimescale.

Overall Conclusion

In general, we abtained reasonable assurance that:

+ Through the Service Level Agreement (SLA} in place with Dundee City Council (DCC),
changes in employment legislation are identified and changes are made on a timely hasis.

» Employment policies in place cover all appropriate areas and are considered to be
adequate,

s The staff handbook provides employees with access to employment policies and they are
aware of their requirements. This arrangement is deemed appropriate with a minor
weakness noted.

s All policies are reviewed to ensure that they are equalities impact assessed and comply
with the requirements of the Equalities Act 2010, through the SLA with DCC.

 Although the Board does not have vacancies often due to their low staff turnover, the
recruitment process in place is efficlent and effective and adheres to the requirements
regarding equality, We did note however some areas which require to be strengthened,
particularly regarding the application form used.

« The Board has a systematic approach to setting targets for staff, regularly assessing
performance and development of staff and providing feedback with only a minor
recommendation being raised in this area.

s Training, including induction training, is clearly informed by an assessment of where staff
have skills, knowledge and performance gaps. Minor recommendations have been made
to further strengthen controls in this area.

Summary of Main Findings and Recommendations

The Board has a SLA with DCC and in June 2011, through DCC Personnel Services, the
Board revised its staff handbook. To track subsequent changes to the handbook, a “Revision
Record” is maintained detailing the revision date, detail and section. Each member of staff
has their own copy of the handbook and consequently revisions need fo be sent to each
employee with a memo detailing the change. The memo has a tear off slip which staff must
complete and return o the Administration Officer, to acknowledge they have received and
understood the amendment. As there is no control in place to verify that all handbooks have
been updated with amendments, a recommendation has been made for all staff to pass their
staff handbook to the Administration Officer at their annual staff review.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board ~ Employment Legislation and Policies, Recruitment and Staff Performance 2
& Development
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1. Management Summary HENDERSON LOGGIE

Summary of Main Findings and Recommendations (continued)

The application form in use by the Board is the same one that is used by DCC. Included
within it is an “Equal Oppertunities in Employment” questionnaire. It was found during the
audit that DCC have not been providing the guidance notes with their application forms which
detail in particular why applicants are being requested to complete the questionnaire and how
this information is used. Although good practice and not mandatory the Board should consider
providing future applicants with this information, which could be adapted from the one used by
DCC. lt is recommended however that these forms are fully adapted to reflect the Board, as it
was noted from the application form reviewed that reference is being made to DCC and their
policies.

Testing of staff review forms revealed that the Bridge Manager has not completed an
appraisal. A recommendation has been made to consider whether the Bridge Manager should
undertake a staff review by a relevant member of the Board's management (Treasurer, Clerk
or Engineer to the Board). This would enable Board objectives to be incorporated into the
agreed action plan of the Bridge Manager.

Feedback from staff following training courses is currently collated by the individual/company
providing the course., The Board does not request copies of these assessment forms nor has
its own form in use. Courses and training are discussed at the various team meetings,
however there is no centrally held document for each of the courses in order for suggestions
or improvements to be made prior to a similar course being run in the future.

The Board uses a training database to record the date employees have completed training
courses. A recommendation has been raised to record all agreed courses for staff within the
database in order to assess whether all agreed training has been delivered. Furthermore,
where courses require the training to be retaken after a certain period of time, this date should
also be recorded in the database, to ensure that deadlines are not missed and qualifications
lapse.
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3. Main Report HENDERSON LOGGIE

1. Staff Access to Policies

1.1  The Board has a SLA with DCC to provide HR services and support. Through this agreement,
DCC annually reviews the Board's employment policies. Furthermore, they will advise of any
changes in legislation arising throughout the year, and make the proposed changes to their
policies. These are sent to the Bridge Manager for review and then presented to the Board for
approval.

1.2  Observation
Employment policies are maintained within the staff handbook and each member of staff is
provided with their own copy. Amendments to the handbook are sent to each member of staff
with a memo to explain the changes, and a tear off slip to complete and return to the
Administration Manager to confirm that they have received and understeod it. There is
currently no control in place to ensure that all staff are updating their handbooks by removing
and replacing the relevant revised section.
Risk
Staff do not update employment policies and their handbooks are out of date
Recommendation
R1 Te ensure that the amendments to employment policies within staff handbooks are
being made, staff should be asked to bring their handbook to their annual staff review so that
the Administration Manager can review and revise handbooks where relevant.
Benefit
Annual review of handbaooks ensure that all staff have access to current employment policies
Observation

1.3 The staff review system was introduced in January 2010 and has been in operation for two
years. There is currently no reference to the staff review process within the staff handbook.
Risk
Training & Development Section of the handbook is incomplete.
If staff misplace the guidance notes provided at their first review, they will have no other
document {o refer to.
Recommendation
R2 The staff review process should be formally incorporated into the staff handbaook.
Benefit
Employees have a staff review section within the handbook that they can refer to at any time.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board — Employment Legislation and Policies, Recruitment and Staff Performance 7
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2. Recruitment Process
Observation

2.1 As part of the recruitment process, the Board uses the services of DCC Personnel Service.
They will review the job advert, description and person specification to ensure that it complies
with current legislation including the Equalities Act 2010. The application form has been
adapted from the one used by DCC. Although the application form is reviewed when a
vacancy arises, it was noted that the application form in use by the Board makes reference to
DCC within the “Equal Opportunities in Employment” section and also "Flexible Working”
which the Board does not offer employees.
Risk
Applicants may be confused by the reference to DCC or incorrectly think that flexible working
is offered by the Board.
Recommendation
R3 The application form should be reviewed to ensure that all sections have been
updated and adapted so that it is relevant to the Board.
Benefit
Application forms are clear and relevant to the Board.
Observation

2.2 The Beard introduced the “Single Equality Scheme” in June 2011 in order to comply with the

Equalities Act 2010 legislation. The policies within the staff handbook were also reviewed by
DCC to ensure that they were equalities compliant. As part of the application process,
applicants are requested tc complete an “Equal Opportunities in Employment” section. It was
found during the audit that DCC have not been providing the guidance notes with their
application forms detailing in particular why applicants are being asked to complete the "Equal
Opportunities in Employment” form and how this information is used.

Risk
Applicants do not complete and return the "Equal Opportunities in Employment” form

Recommendation

R4 Consideration should be given as to whether guidance notes should be provided to
candidates to support the "Equal Opportunities in Employment” form within the application for
employment.

Benefit
Applicants are provided with sufficient information regarding the "Equal Opportunities in
Employment” form.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Beard — Employment Legislation and Policies, Recruitment and Staff Performance
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3. Main Report HENDERSON LOGGIE
3. Staff Development
3.1 As afore mentioned, the staff review process was introduced in January 2010. A sample of 7

employees were selected and tested to ensure that where relevant, members of staff had
undertaken a staff review in both 2010 and 2011 and any training needs identified were
evidenced as being completed during the year within the staff database, or carried forward to
the following year to be completed. When testing the 2011 staff reviews, the progress of 2010
agreed actions were not always clear. They were not detailed as being completed, carried
forward to the current year agreed actions or ongoing actions. One case noted that first aid
training had not been completed or carried forward into the following year with no explanation
provided. Discussions revealed that this training was only being provided to Bridge Inspectors
due to cost implications and lack of requirement for both Bridge Officers and Inspectors fo be
trained. It was also noted that the Bridge Manager had not undertaken a staff review in either
years.

3.2 Observation
The follow up of the progress of agreed actions within staff review forms are unclear.
Risk
Agreed actions which have not been completed are not brought forward and addressed the
following year,
Recommendation
R5 The staff review form should be adapted to include a box to detail the agreed actions
from the previous review and progress of each of these actions. Any actions noted as being
incomplete or ongoing should be brought forward into the current year agreed actions.
Benefit
Staff are aware of agreed actions which stiil require to be completed or that are ongoing.

3.3 Observation

The Bridge Manager Is not part of the staff review process.

Risk

Board objectives are not being incorporated into the Bridge Managers agreed actions.
Recommendation

R6 Consideration should be given as to whether the Bridge Manager should be included
in the staff review process. A relevant member of the Board's management (Treasurer, Clerk
or Engineer to the Board) could conduct the review and this would enable management to
consider its input to areas which it feels should be addressed or implemented.

Benefit

The Board's management are able to input their objectives into Bridge Manager's agreed
actions.

34  Prior to 2010, the Board did not provide training courses, nor have a training budget. Since
then, a training budget is set annually and staff are asked during their staff reviews if they feel
they require any training. These requests are taken to the Board and agreed where
appropriate.

35 Following the completion of training, staff feedback is collated by the instructor taking the
course. Training courses are discussed and minuted as part of team meetings, and also
during the annual staff reviews. The Board does not request copies of the feedback forms
undertaken following the training courses, nor do they provide staff feedback forms when this
is not done.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board — Employment Legisiation and Policies, Recruitment and Staff Performance 9
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3. Staff Devefopment (continued)
3.6 Observation
There is currently no central document which collates all staff feedback from a pariicular
course.
Risk
Staff feedback regarding course content is not input into future courses
Recommendation
R7 The Board should consider developing their own course feedback form or ensure that
copies of those undertaken at courses are obtained. The feedback should be reviewed and
where applicable used to improve the course when it is undertaken in the future.
Benefit
Future training courses provided to staff are as effective as possible.
3.7 Observation
The Board maintains a database which is updated when an employee completes a training
course. Courses for staff are not input fo the database when they are agreed at staff reviews
therefore there is currently no central record of training that is required as well as completed.
There are also courses which require to be re-taken over a certain period e.q. refreshed every
3 years. The database does not detail the date individuals require to re-take courses which is
particularly important given that these dates will vary for each course and each staff member.
Risks
All agreed training is not completed.
Deadlines for refresher courses are missed and staff qualifications lapse.
Recommendation
R8 The staff training database should be developed to provide a central location for all
training information. When training courses are agreed following staff reviews and approval
by the Bridge Management Team, these should be input into the database on completion of
training. Where relevant, the dates that training requires to be re-taken should also be input.
Benefit
All agreed training would be detailed in the database and could be easily reviewed to ensure
that they have been completed.
Detailing deadlines for training to be retaken will provide a prompt to ensure that qualifications
do not lapse.
Tay Road Bridge Joint Board - Employment Legislation and Policies, Recruitment and Staff Performance 10
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Management Summary HENDERSON LOGGIE

Introduction

As part of the Internal Audit programme at the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board (the Board') for
2011/2012 we carried out a review of the corporate governance and planning arrangements in
place. The Audit Needs Assessment, completed in April 2011, identified this as an area where
risk can arise and where Internal Audit can assist in providing assurances to the Joint Board
and the Bridge Manager that the related control environment is operating effectively, ensuring
risk is maintained at an acceptable level.

Corporate governance is 'the combination of processes and structures implemented by the
governing body in order to inform, direct, manage and monitor the activities of the organisation
toward the achievement of its objectives’ (Cadbury Report, 1892).

Strong corporate governance is important to ensure that the Joint Board provides appropriate
leadership, direction and control of the Board. In addition, the Joint Board must answer to key
stakeholders, ensure that the Board's objectives are being met and hold key executive staff
accountable.

In 2008 the CIPFA/SOLACE Joint Working Group issued Defivering Good Governance in Local
Government. This guidance illustrates best practice for developing and maintaining a local code
of governance and making adopted practice open and explicit. It recommends that authorities
must be able to demonstrate that they are complying with the principles of good governance.
The six core principles defined in the guidance are taken from the Good Governance Standard
for Public Services developed by the Independent Commission on Good Governance in Public
Services and have been adapted for local government purposes. Good governance means;

e Focusing on the purpose of the authority and on outcomes for the community and creating
and implementing a vision for the local area;

«  Members and officers working together to achieve a common purpose with clearly defined
functions and roles;

+«  Promoting the values for the authority and demonstrating the values of good governance
through upholding high standards of conduct and behaviour;

¢« Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective scrutiny and
managing risk;

* Developing the capacity and capability of members and officers to be effective;

e  Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public accountability.

Although the above points are outlined in the standard we recognise that due to the size of the
Board not all of the principles are fully applicable.

Corporate planning involves taking the organisation’s vision and creating an operational plan to
detail how the vision will be achieved. The plan needs to be robust, with specific tasks,
timeframes and regular reporting on achievement against targets.

Scope of the Audit

Corporate Governance

This audit included a high-level review of the comporate governance and planning arrangements
in place within the Board and compared these against best practice. This included reviewing
such items as:

Code of Corporate Governance;
Committee organisation and administration;
Standing Orders;

Financial Regulations;

Delegation of Powers to Officers;

Fraud Guidelines; and

Complaints procedures.

# & & & & & 9
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Objectives of the Audit

The objective of our audit was to obizsin reasonable assurance that the Board's corporate
governance, planning and contro! environment arrangements are in accordance with best
practice as set out in Defivering Good Governance in Local Government — A Guidance Note for
Scottish Authorities published by CIPFA/SOLACE in 2008.

We also carried out a follow-up review on the outstanding actions from Internal Audit report
2009/04, Corporate Governance. Our conclusions on whether these points have been
adequately implemented are included within Appendix 1.

Audit Appreoach

We identified the corporate governance arrangements in place through interviews with staff and
a review of relevant supporting documentation to gain evidence that the arrangements in place
are operating effectively.

The control environment in place at the Board was reviewed and benchmarked against current
best practice using Delivering Good Governance in Local Government. The guidance presents
six principles of good governance, together with supporting principles that are common to all
public service organisations and are intended to assist all those with an interest in public
governance {o assess good governance practice. ‘Applications’ included for each supporting
principle explain what should be carried out to put it into practice.

Our work involved review of specific policies, Joint Board minutes and other documents,
including Financial Regulations and the loca! Code of Corporate Governance, to ensure that
they cover all aspects currently recommended by best practice, as well as discussion with the
Bridge Manager.

Through discussions with key staff we established whether there are appropriate mechanisms
in place to monitor the achievement of the targets within the Revenue and Capital Plans and
that these mechanisms are operating appropriately.

Action Plan

This report sets out a detailed list of improvement actions, which we consider necessary to
ensure full compliance with accepted good practice in this area and these are discussed within
the text for clarity. An action plan for implementation of these recommendations can be found
at Section 2 of this report.

To aid the use of the action plan, our recommendations have been graded to denote the level of
importance that should be given fo each one. These gradings are as follows:

A Fundamental issues which require the consideration of the Joint Board.
B Significant matters which can be resolved by the Board Officers,
C Less significant matters, which do not require urgent attention but which should be

followed up within a reasonable timescale.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board - Corporate Governance and Planning 2
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QOverall Conclusion

Corporate Governance
From our audit work, compliance with Delivering Good Governance in Local Government was
found to be good with a number of minor areas where improvements could be made.

Planning

Reasonable assurance was obtained that, overall, the planning arrangements put in place by
the Board are adequate. In particular, revenue and capital budgets are being appropriately
monitored and controlled; and there is effective linkage between planning and budgeting.

We made a number of recommendations which have not been accepted by Management.
Implementation of these recommendations would ensure full compliance with best practice. We
understand the reasons for the management response and recommend that this should be
reconsidered in future to ensure these reasons are still valid.

Summary of Main Findings and Recommendations

Corporate Governance

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board largely meets the six governance standards as set out in
Defivering Good Governance in Local Government. There are a few areas where improvement
could be made around developing and clearly communicating the Board's purpose and vision
and its intended outcome for citizens and service users and updating existing documents which
identify the key partnerships and relationships that the Board has with other bodies.

The Board should continue to monitor the outcome of expected updated guidance in relation to
complaints procedures and develop its own procedures accordingly. The local Code of
Corporate Governance should be updated to reflect the changes made since the introduction of
the Business Continuity Plan and changes in both the external and internal auditors.

We have also recommended that in order to monitor and review the Joint Board members’ skills
and expertise the Board shouid consider developing a skills matrix to inform the appointment of
new Board Members.

These findings form part of our overall assessment of compliance with the six principles of The
Good Governance Standard for Public Services set out in Appendix 1.

Planning

The Board has never had any kind of Strategic, Corporate or Service Plan in place as
management and the Board believe that there is only a single aim which is detailed in the Tay
Road Bridge Order Confirmation Act 1991,

The Board faces an approximate shortfall of £3m in funding in order to complete the proposed
capital works for the period 2011/12 to 2014/15. Due to the current political and economic
climate additional capital funding may not be available resulting in the three year capital plan not
being achievable. The Board should consider reviewing the three year capital plan to ensure
that planned projects are achievable within the funding available.

Acknowledgements
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Corporate Governance

Comparison with Delivering Good Governance in Local Government

The Board’s corporate governance arrangements have been compared to good practice as
defined in Delivering Good Governance in Locaf Government. Qur findings are given in
Appendix I

Planning

Good practice recommends that public service organisations should have corporate and
operational plans in place and that the organisation demonstrates that:

. there are linkages between the Corporate Plan and Operational Plan which are clearly
defined and communicated;

. the Operational Plan supports the achievement of the strategies that relate to the
organisation’s core activities as detailed in the Corporate Plan;

. the Corporate Plan and Operational Plan are being appropriately monitored and
controlled; and

. there is effective linkage between planning and budgeting at all levels,

The Board does not have a Corporate Plan or Operational Plan in place. The Board has
considered the need to develop plans in the past but due to the uniqueness of the Board’s
operations it has been decided that there would be little added value of developing these
plans.

Our review of the Board's policies against other organisations’ documents noted that the
Board’s position is in line with the Forth Estuary Transport Authority (FETA) who also does not
have a Carporate or Operational Plan in place.

Since the abolition of the bridge tolls in 2007, the Board has been fully funded by the Scottish
Government, through Transport Scotland, by means of grant in aid for both revenue and
capital activities.

The Board has developed a 20 year capital programme which identifies major capital works.
These are prioritised based on existing condition surveys, lifespan of bridge components,
adherence to industry standards and mitigation of risks Iidentified in the Strategic Risk
Register. The plan is reviewed annually by the Bridge Manager and Engineer with the
Engineer reporting progress on all major capital works to the Joint Board each quarter.

Transport Scotland receives copies of all Board reports which include details of the 20 year
capital programme and any subsequent revisions which have been approved by the Joint
Board. The level of capital grant allocated to the Board from Transport Scotland is determined
following consideration of the capital projects pricritised in the 20 year capital pian.

The Bridge Manager develops a three year capital plan based on the 20 year capital
programme and the level of grant funding received from Transport Scotland. This is reviewed
and approved by the Joint Board.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board - Corporate Governance and Planning P
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2.10

2.1

Planning (continued)

Qbservation

From our review of the Board's 20 year capital programme, three year capital plan approved
by the Joint Board and the Board minutes we noted that the Board faces an approximate
shortfall of £3m in funding in order to complete the proposed capital works for the period
2011/12 to 2014/15. The Board requires estimated funding of £21m with Transport Scotland
having approved an initial allocation of £18m. The most significant component of this work is
the Pier Collision Protection works with an estimated value of £18m over this period. The
Board has made Transport Scotland aware of the additional funding requirement and the
Bridge Manager has been in regular contact to discuss with them an increase in future capital
grants.

Risk
Due to the current political and economic climate additional capital funding may not be
available resulting in the three year capital plan not being achievable.

Recommendation
R8 The Board should consider reviewing the three year capital plan to ensure that
planned projects are achievable within the funding available.

Benefit
The likelihood of the three year capital plan being achievable is increased.

The annual revenue budget is developed by the Bridge Manager based on prior year actual
figures and an analysis of the trend of non-pay costs over previous years. The draft budget is
then submitted together with assumptions to the Treasurer for review before it is presented fo
the Joint Board for approval.

Maintenance work included within the revenue budget is generally reactive and includes such
things as de-icing of the road surface of the bridge and its approaches. All other major work is
identified and reviewed annually by the Bridge Manager in consultation with the Engineer to
the Board and included in the 20 year capital programme.

Any changes identified in Capital Plans or grant funding are considered as part of the annual
budget setling process.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board - Corporate Governance and Planning
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Introduction

As part of the Internal Audit programme at the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board (the Board’) for
2011/12 we carried out a review of the Board's information technology (IT) network
arrangements. The Audit Needs Assessment identified these as areas where risk can arise and
where Internal Audit can assist in providing assurances to the Joint Board and the Bridge
Manager that the related control environment is operating effectively, ensuring risk is
maintained at an acceptable level.

Responsibility for ensuring an efficient and effective Information and Communications
Technology (ICT) service delivery to all staff within the Board lies with an external service
provider, Exactive, under arrangements covered by a service level agreement. This includes
first level support over some of the main application systems used in the provision and
maintenance of user access fo the network. Exactive are also responsible for maintaining the
servers upon which the applications are housed, the personal computers (PCs) and laptops
used by staff and the network which connects them. The Board is responsible for the
procurement of iT equipment.

Scope of the Audit
The scope of the audit was to carry out a high-level review of certain key aspects of the 1T
systems in place within the Board to identify any control weaknesses.

Objective of the Audit
The objective of this audit was to obtain reascnable assurance that internal controls in place

ensure the security of the IT network operated by the Board.

Audit Approach

QOur approach was based upon the Internal Control Questionnaires ('ICQs’) provided by the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (‘CIPFAY); guidance provided by the
Control Objectives for Information and related Technology ('COBIT') standard issued by the IT
Governance Institute (ITGI"); discussion with the IT Manager, review of relevant documentation;
and observation, covering the following areas:

. Physical and Environmental Controls

. Network Controls;

. Acceptable Use Policy;

. Logical Access; and

. Compliance with user licence requirements.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board — [T Network Arrangements 1
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Action Plan

This report sets out detailed improvement actions, which we consider necessary to ensure
efficient delivery of each objective and these are discussed within the text for clarity. An
action plan for implementation of these recommendations can be found at Section 2 of this
report.

To aid the use of the action plan, our recommendations have been graded to denote the level
of importance that should be given to each one. These gradings are as follows:

A issues which require the consideration of the Joint Board or one of its commitiees.
B Significant matters that the Bridge Manager can resolve.
C Less significant matters, which do not require urgent atiention but which should be

followed up within a reasonable timescale.

Overall Conclusion

in relation to our specific objective, assurance has been obtained that intemal controls in place
ensure the security of the IT network operated by the Board, however we have identified a
number of areas where further improvements can be made to ensure that controls are in line
with industry recommended best practice.

Summary of Main Findings and Recommendations

Qverall the Board has sufficient physical and environmental controls in place in relation fo IT
equipment however access controls to the server room could be further enhanced.

We found the network to be in good health and well managed; that the server appears to be
well configured and kept up-to-date; the network appears to be adequately monitored and
virus protection is in place. Through discussions with the Board's IT support providers, and
review of evidence obtained, we are satisfied that the expected minimum controls exist which
ensure fhat the integrity of the Board's IT network is maintained,

From our review of the Service Level Agreement (SLA) which is in place with Exactive we
noted that several sections are not complete and are out-of-date. The SLA with Exactive
should be updated to ensure it includes all IT equipment and operating systems in use by the
Board.

Board staff are able to access the Board's network from home or other off-site locations
however remote access o the Board’s network is not covered by existing policies. In order
that staff are aware of the security measures that should be taken when accessing the Board's
network from off-site locations, the Board should establish a Remote Access IT Policy for
inclusion within the Staff Handbook.

An Acceptable Use Policy is detailed in the Use of Computing Facilities section of the Staff
Handbook. However this should be revised to fully represent the Board's present (T
environment and the use of mobile computing devices.

Our review of the Disaster Recovery Plan noted that the plan contains a section for third party
contact details, however this is blank. Lack of third party contact details in the Disaster
Recovery Plan may lead to delays in Board staff implementing the plan and critical IT
functions may not be restored within agreed timescales, The Disaster Recovery Plan should
be updated io include the contact details of all third parties which would require to be
contacted during implementation of the plan,

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board - IT Network Asrangements 2
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1.

1.1

1.2

2.1

22

2.3

Physical and Environmental Controls

Our review included an inspection of the Board's server room and location of other 1T
equipment,

Observation

The Board’s main server is located within an unlocked room which can be accessed by all
staff. There is no system for monitoring access to the server room. Although the room is
situated within a staff only area of the building which is accessible by entry through a door with
a passcode entry system, this door was unlocked at the time of our audit visit.

Risk
There could be unauthorised access to servers.

Recommendation

R1 The Board should consider installing a suitable entry system for gaining access to the
server room which can be easily controlled. Options include code focks and elecironic access
cards. Whichever system is put into place, controls over access need to be implemented to
handle staff changes and the monitoring of access.

Benefit
By ensuring that access to the server room is suitably controlled, the risk of unauthorised
access will be reduced.

Network Infrasfructure

The maintenance of the Board's network infrastructure is the responsibility of an external
service provider. A service level agreement (SLA) has been in place with Exactive since 2009,
Through discussion with Exactive staff and review of Board's documents we found the
network to be in good health and well managed; that the server appears to be weil configured
and kept up-to-date; the network appears to be adequately monitored and virus protection is in
place.

As part of our review we discussed with Exactive the controls which they have put in place
which ensure the integrity of the Board's IT network infrastructure is maintained. From these
discussions we are satisfied that the expected minimum controls exist, which cover:

s file management;

IT security including file controls;

access controls;

password controls;

change control procedures including reviewing, approving, testing and implementing
network upgrades and patches; and

« a firewall policy including configuration and settings.

The network is further protected by a firewall, anti-virus software and internet content software
which are ail in use. There is also an emergency power supply providing short term power in
the event of a power cutage.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board - 1T Network Arrangements 5
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2.

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

Network Infrastructure {continued)

Qur review also considered the effectiveness of the Board’s IT disaster recovery response by
discussing the disaster recovery arrangements that are in place with Exactive. We obtained a
copy of Exactive’s Disaster Recovery document that is in place for the Board and found that it
contains a sufficiently detailed schematic of the Board's network structure. Overali we are
satisfied that the content of Exactive's Disaster Recovery document is sufficient to ensure that
the risk of excessive delay in re-establishing the Board's IT services in the event of a major .
disruption is reduced.

It is recognised good practice to regularly perform back-up restores to ensure that the backups
taken may be relied upon in the event of a disaster. Backups are taken on a daily basis by
Board staff with the details of tapes used, date the back-up was taken and member of staff
performing the back-up recorded on a log sheet. This is in line with common business
practice.

In addition, formal testing of the back-ups takes place every six months whereby back-up
tapes are sent fo Exactive who run the tapes on the Board's disaster recovery server held by
Exactive which alsc allows Exactive to test the reliability of the back-up server. Regular file
restores can be performed remotely by Exactive when requested.

Back-up tapes are kept within a fire-proof vault, held in a separate location form the Board’s
server room, which was previously used for housing cash collected from the former bridge
tolls, Tapes are clearly labelled and stored in order within the vault. We note that this is the
only collection of backup tapes as no offsite copy is maintained. By keeping back-up media
within the primary site, a disaster scenario resulting in limited or no access to the site could
potentially render the backups unattainable. However the construction of the vault is deemed
to be so robust that potential downtime due {o a disaster at the primary site will be minimised.

Observation

From our review of the SLA which is in place with Exactive we noted that several sections are
not complete and cut-of-date. Section 1.2 of the SLA lists the PCs and laptops for which
Exactive provides proactive IT support to the Board and section 1.3 details the operating
systems installed on the Board's PCs and laptops. Since the SLA was signed in 2009 the
Board has purchased several PCs and installed more recent operating systems which are not
reflected in the SLA.

Risk

Board IT equipment and operating systems are not covered by the SLA. Equipment is not
identified by Exactive and appropriate controls such as local user access rights and anti-virus
software is not installed,

Recommendation

R2 The Service Level Agreement (SLA) with Exactive should be updated to ensure it
includes ail IT equipment and operating sysiems in use by the Board. The SLA should be
updated whenever new equipment is purchased.

Benefit
The SLA is up-to-date and covers all of the Board's [T equipment,

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board — IT Network Arrangements 7
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3. Logical Access
3.1 Observation

4.1

From discussions with Board staff we noted that staff are able {o access the Board's network
from home or other off-site [ocations. A review of the Board's existing IT policies noted that
there is no policy in place which covers remote access to the Board's network.

Risk
There is a potential for unautharised access to the Board's network which may compromise
the security of Board data.

Recommendation

R3 in order that staff are aware of the security measures that should be taken when
accessing the Board's network from off-site [ocations, the Board should establish a Remote
Access IT Policy for inclusion within the Staff Handbook.

Benefit .
Staff will be aware of the security measures that they should take when remotely accessing
the network.

Acceptable Use Policy

Observation

The Board's acceptable use policy is covered in the Staff Handbook which contains a section
on the Use of Computing Facilities’. The Board’s policy, whilst covering a wide varfety of
areas, does not currently reflect the Board's use of mobile devices.

Risk
Mobile computing, whilst beneficial to the Beard, brings with it a unique set of security risks
which need to be addressed in the Use of Computing Facilities.

Recommendation

R4 The ‘Use of Computing Facilities’ policy should be reviewed to ensure it properly
reflects the Board's current IT operation, in particular its adoption of mobile computing. This
should cover:

= Security of the devices;
s Connection to third party networks; and
*  Data encryption.

Benefit
Adopting a continuing review approach will ensure that the policy stays current and help
manage the Board's information and IT risks.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board —IT Network Arrangements
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5.

5.1

5.2

53

5.4

5.5

6.1

Compliance with User Licence Requirements

Each of the Board’s PCs or laptops is installed with Microsoft Office software packages with
each package having been bought separately for each workstation. Only one PC has
Computer Aided Design (CAD) software installed. No other specialist software is installed on
the Board’s [T equipment,

The Board maintains a hardcopy database of licences for all software installed on Board
computer equipment which is updated manually by Board staff.

Periodic checks on individual computers and servers to idenfify any unauthorised software are
not performed by Exactive as it is felt that sufficient password and user access rights controls
are in place to ensure that software can only be installed on Board equipment by staff with
Administrator access rights. Only Exactive staff, and to a lesser degree, the Bridge Manager,
have these rights.

Netwaork logs are maintained by the Exactive Service Team which includes changes to
security settings, failed file access attempts and access to critical data files., These are
regularly reviewed and any breeches are immediately followed up with appropriate action
taken.

We were advised that there have been no recorded incidents of staff installing unauthorised
software on Board IT equipment or any breaches in software user licences in recent years.

General

Observation

The Board's Disaster Recovery Plan details the hardware and equipment deemed fo be
critical and available for use in implementing the plan. The Board's file server is identified as
having 'very high criticality’. If the Board is to ensure that the critical IT equipment is available
at the recovery site within the agreed timescales the Disaster Recovery Plan should contain
the details of third parties to be contacted in the event of a disaster. Qur review of the
Disaster Recovery Plan noted that the plan does contain a section for third party contact
details, however this is blank.

Risk

Lack of third party contact details in the Disaster Recovery Plan may lead to delays in Board
staff implementing the plan and critical IT functions may not be restored within agreed
timescales.

Recommendation
R5 The Disaster Recovery Plan should be updated to include the contact details of all
third parties which would require to be contacted during implementation of the plan.

Benefit
Staff are aware of third party contact details required during implementation of the Board’s
Disaster Recovery Plan.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board — IT Network Arrangements
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Introduction and Background

We have been appointed as Internal Auditors to the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board (‘the Board’) for the
period 1 April 2010 to 31 March 2013. The Internal Audit Plan for 2011/2012 includes time for follow-up
work on the recommendations made in our Internal Audit reports issued during 2010/2011. These were:

2011/03 — Health and Safety;
2011/04 — Payroll;

2011/05 — General Ledger;
2011/08 — Procurement; and
2011/07 - Risk Management.

Reports 2011/01, 2011/02 and 2011/09 did not contain an action plan and therefore no follow-up was
required as part of this review. There was only one outstanding action from 2009/10 that required to be
followed up again this year.

Audit Scope and Objectives

The objective of our follow-up review will be fo assess whether recommendations made in internal audit
reports from 2010/11 have been appropriately implemented and to ensure that, where littie or no progress
has been made towards implementation, that plans are in place to progress them.

Audit Approach

The audit approach taken was as follows:

. to request from responsible officers for each report listed above an update on the status of
implementation of the recommendations made;

. to ascertain by review of supporting documentation, for any significant recommendations within
the reports listed above, whether action undertaken has been adequate; and

. preparation of a summary of the current status of the recommendations for the Board.

Overall Conclusion

The Board has made good progress in implementing the 15 recommendations contained within internal
audit reports listed above with nine recommendations being assessed as fully implemented. Two actions
were considered but not implemented and details are provided in the Action Plan at Section 2. Only three
recommendations are assessed as not implemented / partially implemented. Revised implementation
dates have been agreed for these recommendations and they will be followed up again next year. A
further two recommendations were considered by the Board management but net implemented.

There was one outstanding action point from the Corporate Governance report issued in 2009/2010. The
Board has partially implemented the recommendation contained within report 2009/04. The Business
Continuity Plan was approved by the Board in September 2010 and the publication of Board minutes on
the website commenced in December 2011. However, the remainder of the recommendation, in relation
to the introduction of a formal complaints procedure, had not commenced. A revised implementation date
had been agreed for the full implementation of the remaining element of the original recommendation and
this is reflected in the Updated Action Plan in Section 3.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board — Follow up 1



@

1. Management Summary HENDERSON LOGGIE
From Original Reports Froni Follow-Up Work Performed
Little or Considered
Area Recommendation | Number Fully Partially No ‘m‘ nefte
Grades Agreed | Implemented | Implemented | Progress [ °
Made mplemented
Critical 1 - - - 1
Health And L
Safety Significant 2 2 - - -
Routine - - - - -
Critical - - - - -
Payroll Significant 3 3 - - -
Routine - - - - -
Critical - - - - -
General L
Ledger Significant - - - - -
Routine 1 1 - - -
Critical - - - R -
Procurement Significant 3 3 N - -
Routine - - - - -
Critical - - - - -
Risk I
Management Significant 4 1 1 1 1
Routine - - - - -
From 2009/10
Critical - - - - -
Corporate Significant 1 - 1 - -
Governance
Routine - - - - -
Total 15 9 3 1 2

The one partially implemented action in the Risk Management report will be implemented when the
report on Insurances is presented to the Joint Board meeting In June 2012,

The Risk Management action that has litle or no progress made’ has been delayed as the Board has
yet to identify alternative accommodation as part of its Business Continuity Plan arrangements. It is
expected that this will be completed by the end of 2012. Updating the risk register fo include
specification of the Board's risk appetite was the action that was considered but not implemented due
to the limited nature and number of risks.

The partially implemented Corporate Governance action is due to the Board awaiting the publication of
updated guidance on complaints procedures which is expected to be released in September 2012,

Acknowledgements
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1. Annual Report and Opinion HENDERSON LOGGIE

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

We were formally appointed in April 2011 as internal auditers of Tay Road Bridge Joint Board
('the Board') for the period 1 April 2010 to 31 March 2013. This report summarises the
internal audit work performed during 2011/12.

An Audit Needs Assessment (ANA), based on the areas of risk that the Board is exposed to,
was prepared as part of our internal audit programme for 2010/11 (internal audit report
2011/01, issued April 2011). The ANA was prepared following discussion with the Bridge
Manager and the external auditors, Audit Scotland, and with reference to the CIPFA Code of
Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the United Kingdom and from a review of
previous internal and external audit reports, and covered the three-year internal audit cycle
from 2010/11 to 2012/13. The ANA was based on the previous internal audit risk assessment
updated to reflect changes in the internal and external environment in the intervening period,
and our own assessment of the risks faced by the Board. Following on from the ANA, a
Sirategic Plan was formulated covering the three-year cycie.

The work undertaken in 2011/12 is set out in the Strategic Plan for 2011/12. The reports
submitted are listed in Section 2 of this report and a summary of results and conclusions from
each assignment is given at Section 3.

An analysis of time spent against budget is at Section 4. The actual time spent was less than
budgeted resulting in a saving of £2,275 (5 days @ £455 per day) against the agreed fee.

Significant Issues

There were no significant issues identifying major internal control weaknesses arising from our
internal audit work. In general, procedures were operating adequately in the areas selected,
but in most cases areas for further strengthening were identified and action plans have been
agreed to address these issues.

Opinion

In our opinion the Board operates adequate and effective internal control systems as defined
in the ANA. Proper arrangements are in place to promote and secure Value for Money. This
opinion has been arrived at taking into consideration the work we have undertaken during the
current year and an examination of the reports of the previous internal audit service provider,
Dundee City Council.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board — Annual Report 2010/11 1
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2. Reports Submitted HENDERSON LOGGIE

2012/01 Annual Plan 2011/12

2012/02 Employment Legislation and Policies, Recruitment and Staff Performance &
Development

2012/03 Coerporate Governance and Planning

2012/04 IT Network Arrangements

2012/05 Follow-Up Reviews

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board — Annual Report 2011/12 2
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3. Summary of Results and Conclusions HENDERSON LOGGIE

2012/01 - Annual Plan 2011/12
Final Issued January 2012

The purpose of this document was to present the annual operating plan for the year ended 31 March
2012. The plan was based on the proposed allocation of audit days for 2011/12 set out in the ANA
and Strategic Plan 2010 to 2013.

The detailed scope, objectives and audit approach for each audit assignment to be undertaken,
arrived at following discussion with the Bridge Manager, were set out in the report.

2012/02 - Employment Legisfation and Policies, Recruitment and Staff Performance &
Development

Final Issued March 2012

The audit included a review of employment legislation and policies, recruitment processes, and
actions to retain and improve Board staff.

In general, we obtained reasonable assurance that:

. Through the Service Level Agreement (SLA) in place with Dundee City Council (DCC), changes
in employment legislation are identified and changes are made on a timely basis.

. Employment policies in place cover all appropriate areas and are considered to be adequate.

. The staff handbook provides employees with access to employment policies and they are aware
of their requirements. This arrangement is deemed appropriate with a minor weakness noted.
The staff review system was introduced in January 2010 and has been in operation for two
years. However there is currently no reference to the staff review process within the staff
handbook. We recommended that the staff review process should be formally incorporated into
the staff handbook.

»  Allpolicies are reviewed to ensure that they are equalities impact assessed and comply with the
requirements of the Equalities Act 2010, through the SLA with DCC.

. Although the Board does not have vacancies often due to their low staff turnover, the
recruitment process in place is efficient and effective and adheres to the requirements regarding
equality. We did note however some areas which require to be strengthened, particularly
regarding the application form used. The application form has been adapted from the one used
by DCC and it was noted that the application form in use by the Board makes reference to DCC
within the “Equal Opportunities in Employment” section and also "Flexible Working” which the
Board does not offer employees. We recommended that the application form should be
reviewed to ensure that all sections have been updated and adapted so that it is relevant to the
Board.

. The Board has a systematic approach to setting targets for staff, regularly assessing
performance and development of staff and providing feedback with only a minor
recommendation being raised in this area. Our review noted that the Bridge Manager is not part
of the staff review process. We recommended that the Bridge Manager should be included in
the staff review process. A relevant member of the Board's management (Treasurer, Clerk or
Engineer to the Board) could conduct the review and this would enable management to
consider its input to areas which it feels should be addressed or implemented.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board — Annual Report 2011/12 3



3. Summary of Results and Conclusions HENDERSON LOGGIE

2012/02 - Empioyment Legislation and Policies, Recruitment and Staff Performance &
Development {continued)

. Training, including induction training, is clearly informed by an assessment of where staff have
skills, knowledge and performance gaps. Minor recommendations were made to further
strengthen controls in this area including ensuring that the progress of agreed actions within
staff review forms is made clear, developing a course feedback form and when training courses
are agreed following staff reviews and approval by the Bridge Management Team, these should
be input into the database on completion of training.

2011/03 - Corporate Governance and Planning
Final Issued May 2012

This audit included a high-level review of the corporate governance and planning arrangements in
place within the Board and compared these against best practice.

From our audit work, compliance with Delfvering Good Governance in Local Government published by
CIPFA/SOLACE in 2008 was found to be good with a number of minor areas where improvements
could be made. Reasonable assurance was obtained that, overall, the planning arrangements put in
place by the Board are adequate. In particular, revenue and capital budgets are being appropriately
monitored and controlled; and there Is effective linkage befween planning and budgeting at all levels.

Corporate Governance

Tayside Road Bridge Jaint Board largely meets the six governance standards as set out in Delivering
Good Governance in Local Government. There are a few areas where improvement could be made
around developing and clearly communicating the Board's purpose and vision and its intended
outcome for citizens and service users and updating existing documents which identify the key
partnerships and relationships that the Board has with other bodies.

The Board should continue to monitor the outcome of expected updated guidance in relation to
complaints procedures and develop its own procedures accordingly. The local Code of Corporate
Governance should be updated to reflect the changes made since the introduction of the Business
Continuity Plan and changes in both the external and internal auditors,

These findings form part of our overall assessment of compliance with the six principles of The Good
Governance Standard for Public Services set out in Appendix | of report 2012/03,

Planning

The Board faces an approximate shortfall of £3m in funding in order to complete the proposed capital
works for the period 2011/12 to 2014/15. Due to the current political and economic climate additional
capital funding may not be available resulting in the three year capital plan not being achievable. We
recommended that the Board should consider reviewing the three year capital plan to ensure that
planned projects are achievable within the funding available.

2011/04 — IT Network Arrangements

Final Issued April 2012

The scope of the audit was to carry out a high-level review of certain key aspects of the IT systems in
place within the Board to identify any control weaknesses.

In relation to our specific objective, assurance was obtained that internal controls in place ensure the
security of the IT network operated by the Board, however we identified a number of areas where
further improvements could be made to ensure that controls are in line with industry recommended
best practice, including:

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board — Annual Report 2011712 4
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3. Summary of Results and Conclusions HENDERSON LOGGIE

2011/04 — IT Network Arrangements {Cont'd)
* access controls to the server room could be further enhanced.

« from our review of the Service Level Agreement (SLA) which is in place with Exactive we
noted that several sections were not complete and out-of-date. A recommendation was raised
that the SLA with Exactive should be updated to ensure it includes all IT equipment and
operating systems in use by the Board.

« the Board should develop policies which reflect the Boards current IT environment including a
Remote Access IT Policy and the use of mobile computing devices.

¢ Our review of the Disaster Recovery Plan noted that the plan contains a section for third party
contact details, however this was blank. Lack of third party contact details in the Disaster
Recovery Plan may lead to delays in Board staff implementing the plan and critical 1T
functions may not be restored within agreed timescales. We therefore recommended that the
Disaster Recovery Plan should be updated to include the contact details of all third parties
which would require fo be contacted during implementation of the plan

2011/05 - Follow-Up Reviews
Final Issued May 2012

We carried out a follow-up review of recommendations made in the following internal audit reports
issued during 2010/11:

. Internal Audit Report 2011/03 — Health and Safety;

Internal Audit Report 2011/04 — Payroli;

Internal Audit Report 2011/05 — General Ledger,

Internal Audit Report 2011/06 — Procurement and Creditors / Purchasing; and

Internal Audit Report 2011/07 — Risk Management, Business Continuity and Insurance.

The objective of each of our follow-up reviews was to assess whether recommendations made in
previous reports had been appropriately implemented and to ensure that, where little or no progress
had been made towards implementation, that plans were in place to progress them.

Overall, the Board had made progress in implementing the recommendations followed-up as part of
our review.

The main area where there had been ‘ittle or no progress made’ was Risk Management. Work was
however underway, or was planned, to address the outstanding recommendation with a revised target
completion date set.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board — Annuai Report 201112 5
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4, Time Spent — Budget v Actual HENDERSON LOGGIE
Internal Audit Report | Planned A(‘:fc::sa | Df?ésaio :;gﬁ;oj
number days feod ;V[I]e% Wip Variance

Staffing Issues
Recruitment and refention / HR policies 2012/02 6 - 6 - -
Organisational Issues
Corporate governance)* 2012/03 10 - 7 - 3
Corporate planning)*
Information and IT
IT network arrangements 2012/04 8 - 6 - 2
Other Audit Activities

Liaison with Externai Audit N/A

Management and Planning 2012101 4 - 3 1 -

Attendance at Joint Board N/A

Follow-up Reviews 2012/05 2 - 1 1 -
Total 30 - 23 2 5

*These projects were linked and only one report produced

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board ~ Annual Report 201112
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5. Operational Plan for 2012/13 HENDERSON LOGGIE

5.1 Following our appointment as internal auditors for the period from 1 April 2010 to 31 March 2013
we prepared an Audit Needs Assessment and Strategic Plan for 2010 to 2013 (internal audit
report 2011/01, issued April 2011).

52 The following is an extract from the Strategic Plan, in relation to 2012/13, which will be discussed
with management, and updated if appropriate before being finalised for next year.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board Strategic Plan 2010/11 to 2012/13

Proposed Allocation of Audit Days

Planned
1213
Days
Reputation
Health and Safely
Staffing Issues
Recruitment and retention / HR policies
Payrolf
Estates and Facilities
Physical Security )
Asset management ) 8
Delivery of major projects 7

Financial [ssues
Budget setting / budgetary controf 5
General ledger

Procurement and creditors / purchasing
Debtors / income

Cash & bank / Treasury managetient

Organisational issues

Risk management / Business continuity
Corporate governance)

Corporate planning)

Insurance arrangements

Information and IT
IT network arrangements

Data protection / FO! 4
Other Audit Activities

Management and Planning ) 4
External audit )

Attendance at audit commitiees )

Follow-up reviews 2
ANA

Total 30

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board - Annual Report 2011/12 7



REPORT TO: TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD - 18 JUNE 2012

REPORT ON: RESPONSE TO INTERNAL AUDITOR’S ANNUAL REPORT TO
MEMBERS

REPORT BY: THE BERIDGE MANAGER

REPORT NO: TRB 9 ~ 2012

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

2.1

3.1

4.1

5.1

6.1

This report is in response to the Annual Report, ref 2012/06, prepared by the Board’s

Internal Auditor, Henderson Loggie, on Employment Policies, Corporate Governance

and Planning, It Network Arrangements and previous Audit follow ups. A copy of the

Internal Auditor's report is included on the Agenda as a separate Item.

RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that the Board:-

i) Endorse this report as the formal response to the Internal Auditor’s report.

i) Instruct the Bridge Manager to implement the Internal Auditor's
recommendations as set out in paragraphs 6.2 1o 6.7 inclusive.

FINANCIAL iIMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications associated with this report.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

None

BACKGROUND
introduction

The Board's Internal Audit Needs Assessment and Strategic Plan, issued in April
2011 (paper ref TRB13-2011, June 2011 Board Meeting), identified Employment
Policies, Corporate Governance and Planning, It Network Arrangements as areas
where risk can arise and as part of the planned internal audit work, a high level review
of the arrangements in place at the Board was carried out in March / April 2012.

REPORT

Internal Auditor's Annual Report

i) The Internal Auditor's Annual Report, Ref 2012/06, describes the scope of the
audit work undertaken, the specific objectives of the audit and the principal
conclusions drawn from the review.
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i) The report is based on the findings of the individual reports below:-
2012/01 Annual Plan 2011/12 (paper ref TRB3-2012 March 2012 Board)
2012/02 Employment Legislation & Policies, Recruitment and Staff
Performance & Development
2012/03 Corporate Governance and Planning
2012/04 IT Network Arrangements
2012/05 Follow Up Reviews

Overall no significant issues identifying major internal control weaknesses were
identified. It was found that procedures were operating adequately and the following
issues raised from the individual reports were identified for the opportunity of further
strengthening existing procedures.

6.2 Report 2012/02 — Employment Legislation, Recruitment and Staff performance &

Development — Main Recommendations

i) The following actions were agreed as a result of the recommendations of the

report:-

The next review of the Staff Handbook should make reference to the
Staff Review Process

Minor changes should be made to the Application Form used for
recruitment

The Bridge Manager should be included in the Staff review process

8.3 Report 2012/03 — Corporate Governance & Planning — Main Recommendations

i) The following actions were agreed as a result of the recommendations of the
report:-

The Boards should continue to monitor updated guidance on
governance issues

The Board should continue to review the three year capital plan fo
ensure that planned projects are achievable within the funding
available

6.4 Report 2012/04 — IT Network Arrangements — Main Recommendations

i) The following actions were agreed as a result of the recommendations of the

report:-

Improvements to access controls to server room to eb considered
Current Service Level Agreement with Exactive to be reviewed in light
of {T changes

Disaster recovery plan to be monitored and updated



6.5

7.1

8.1

Report 2011/05 — Follow Up Reviews

)} The following actions were agreed as a a result of the recommendations of
the report:-
+« Revised timescales for implementation of Complainis Procedure
agreed
» Revised timescale for identifying possible alternative temporary
accommodation in the event of a Business Continuity incident agreed

CONSULTATION

The Clerk, Treasurer and the Engineer have been consulted in the preparation of this
report.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Internal Audit Reporis

i) 2012/01 Annual Plan 2011/12 (TRB3-2012)

i) 2012/02 Employment Legislation & Policies, Recruitment and Staff
Performance & Development

ii) 2012/03 Corporate Governance and Planning

iv) 2012/04 IT Network Arrangements

V) 2012/05 Follow Up Reviews

vi) 2012/06 Annual Report

IAIN MACKINNON
BRIDGE MANAGER
24 May 2012

185



186



REPORT TO: TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD — 18 JUNE 2012

REPORT ON: FIFE CORE PATH (NO 142)

REPORT BY: THE BRIDGE MANAGER/ THE CLERK TO THE BOARD

REPORT NO: TRB 12 - 2012

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 This report is to inform the Members of the request from Fife Council to utilise part of
Board property to the south of the bridge for the construction of a path to form part of
the Fife Core Path Network.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

21 It is recommended that the Board:-

i) Approve the request from Fife Council for permission to construct the path as
show on Drawing No 001/R71567/010 and in accordance with the Agreement
between the Board and Fife Council.

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report.

4 POLICY IMPLICATIONS

4.1 None

5. DISCUSSION

5.1 In August 2008, Fife Council published proposals for their Core Path Network for
consultation. Core Path No. 142 was shown to take a line across land to the south of
the Bridge linking the Board’s car park with Newport on Tay. The Board submitted an
objection to the line as originally shown but stated that if the line was removed to the
west boundary of the land then they would remove the objection.

The overall line of the path is shown in Appendix 1 and the revised detailed route over

Board property is shown in Appendix 2

5.2 In September 2011 The Scottish Ministers received a report from the Directorate for

Planning and Environmental Appeals recommending that the Access Authority be
directed to adopt the plan subject to the modifications to the Draft Consultative Fife
Core Path Plans of August 2008. The Plan for Path no 142 took into account the
concerns of the Board regarding the route thereby removing the previous objection.
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5.3

5.4

55

5.6

5.7

6.1

in October 2011 Fife Council approached the Board via the Clerk to discuss the
construction of the path following the publication of the Core Path route. The Clerk
stated that in principal the path was acceptable but that before formal approval coulid
be given full details and agreement would need to be in place before the works could
commence.

In March 2012 Fife Council commenced work on the path on Board property, however
it transpired that no final construction details or formal agreement had been received
by the Board and Fife Council were advised that work could not continue until these
matters had been resolved.

Discussions were held in March between the Bridge Manager and Officers from Fife
Council regarding the standard of finish of the path and reinstatement and issues of
alignment agreed. The Bridge Manager is satisfied that there are no operational or
maintenance issues with the path as proposed.

A draft Agreement was submitted to the Clerk to the Board by Fife Council in March
2012 regarding a Deed of Servitude over Board property to construct the path. Title of
the land remains with the Board at all times. However should the Board require the
Core Path to be removed in the event that the land is required for Board operational
issues then the Agreement allows for the path to be removed, subject to an agreed
Notice Period.

It is on the basis of this agreement that the recommendation to the Board 1o accept
the proposal is made

CONSULTATION

The Clerk, Treasurer and the Engineer have been consulted in the preparation of this
report.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

IAIN MACKINNON
BRIDGE MANAGER
24 May 2012



Appendix 1 — Core Path 142 Location

Core PAth 142, site map for path agreement
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Appendix 2

Path Route over Board Land

Path shown in red bebween polnts Xand Y
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REPORT TO: TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD — 18 JUNE 2012

REPORT ON: REMUNERATION OF CHAIR AND VICE-CHAIR
REPORT BY: TREASURER
REPORT NO: TRBJB 15-2012

3.1

3.2

4.1

PURPOSE OF REPORT

The purpose of this report is fo advise the Board on the arrangements to be made for the
remuneration of the Chair and Vice-Chair and to recommend the arrangements for the
payment of allowances and expenses.

RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended that the Board approves:-
a) the remuneration arrangements for its Chair and Vice-Chair as set out in this report.

b) that allowances and expenses claimable by Board Members under the Regulations in
respect of duties undertaken in that capacity continue to be met by the Council to
which each Board member belongs.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

If the Board's Chair and Vice-Chair are Basic Councillors within their own Council then the
additional maximum cost to the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board will be £7,105, however
officers will make every effort to contain this within the Board's approved 2012/13 Revenue
Budget.

If the Board's Chair or Vice-Chair are filled by Councillors who have an enhanced salary, eg
Leader or Senior Councillor within their own Council, then the maximum cost to the Joint
Board will be less than £7,105.

BACKGROUND

The Local Governance (Scotland) Act 2004 {Remuneration) Regulations 2007 set out the
remuneration arrangements for Councillors. The Regulations make specific arrangements
in respect of the Chairs and Vice-Chairs of Joint Boards. The purpose of this report is
therefore to advise members of the remuneration arrangements as they relate to the Tay
Road Bridge Joint Board.
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It is assumed that Board members will have been advised of the general provisions of the
remuneration arrangements for local authority Councillors by the relevant officers within their
individual Councils. This report therefore focuses solely on the position of the Chair and
Vice-Chairs of the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board as set out in paragraph 12 of the
Regulations.

In respect of the Chair position, the Regulations require that this person be paid an amount
which, when added to any amount payable to them as a Councillor or Senior Councillor of
their authority, shall equal the total yearly amount being 75% of the Leader of a Band A
Council. In effect this means that the Chair of the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board can be paid
£20,294.

In respect of Vice-Chair position, the Regulations require that this person be paid an amount
which, when added to any amount payable to them as a Councillor or Senior Councillor of
their authority, shall equal the total yearly amount being 75% of the difference between the
Chair's salary and the basic salary and this equates to £19,279.

Amendment to primary legislation will be required to enable Joint Boards themselves to
determine the remuneration levels which should be paid to their Chairs and Vice-Chairs. In
the interim, the remuneration of the Board's Chair and vice-Chair will be made by the local
authority of which the Chair/Vice-Chair is a member. That authority should then make its
own administrative arrangements with the Joint Board for reimbursement of the amount paid
to the Councillors in their Joint Board Chair or Vice-Chair capacity less the basic
remuneration of £16,234.

In the event that the Joint Board's Chair or Vice-Chair is a Leader of a Council, Civic head or
Senior Councillor, then the amount sought in reimbursement from the Joint Board would be
determined by deducting the actual remuneration paid to the Councillor by the local
authority from the remuneration attached fo the Joint Board Chair or Vice-Chairship. This
may, depending on the remuneration level paid by the local authority in respect of the
Councillor's role within the authority, result in a nil payment requirement from the Joint
Board.

ALLOWANCES AND EXPENSES ARRANGEMENTS

The Local Government (Allowances and Expenses) (Scotland) Regulations 2007 set out the
arrangements for payment of e.g. mileage allowances and other expenses to Councillors.
Unlike the Remuneration Regulations, the Allowances and Expenses Regulations make no
specific provision for arrangements relating to Joint Boards. The Scottish Government has
however published Guidance on the Regulations which suggests that "Joint Boards in
deciding what expenses and allowances to reimburse, apply the spirit of these new
provisions to claims and reimburse receipted expenditure where appropriate”.

In effect, this leaves the matter of arrangements for reimbursement of allowances and
expenses in respect of Joint Board duties to be determined by the Board. Current practice
in respect of the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board has been for any allowances or expenses
claimable by a Board member in respect of duties undertaken in that capacity eg travel to
Board meetings to be met by the Council to which that board member belongs. This
approach has been adopted for the following reason:-

e a single point of claim for elected members which is their own Council eliminates the
risk of duplicate claims being made in error and also avoids complications over who
pays, for example where a Board member travels to a Board meeting and then goes
on to undertake Council business at the same location.
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Although these arrangements have been introduced under the Allowances and Expenses
Regulations which Councils must adopt, there appears to be no strict requirement to put in
place a separate scheme for Joint Boards. Given that the existing practice of expenses and
allowances costs being met directly by the board members own Council has a number of
practical advantages, there does not appear to be a compelling case for moving away from
this arrangement. For this reason it is recommended that any allowances or expenses in
respect of the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board duties undertaken which are claimable under the
Regulations be met by the Council to which that Board member belongs. Such claims would
thereby fall into whatever approval and review processes as the individual Councils have put
in place for their own purposes.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

This report has been screened for any policy implications in respect of Sustainability,
Strategic Environmental Assessment, Anti-Poverty, Equality Impact Assessment and Risk
Management.

There are no major issues.

CONSULTATION

The Clerk and Bridge Manager have been consulted on the content of this report.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

MARJORY M STEWART
TREASURER 11 JUNE 2012






